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Al-Jazeera top news editor:
“I’m a soldier at the service of
the community”

WHO wants total ban
on tobacco advertising

18

'S 60th anniversary of Nakbah

commemorated with folk
dance-theatre performance

By: Saddam Al-Ashmori
For The Yemen Times

AMRAN, May 31 — At least seven
men were killed and 10 others injured
when a gunman, believed to be mental-
ly ill, fired into a mosque full of wor-
shipers during Friday prayers in
Amran’s Quhal area.

An Amran security official said 25-
year-old Abdulalh Saleh Zaid broke
into the village’s mosque while wor-
shipers where performing Friday
prayers and fired more than 90 live
rounds from a Kalashnikov rifle.

The shooting rampage left brothers
Bilal and Mohammed Salem Al-
Quhali, ages 20 and 19, Abdullah
Ahmad  Al-Quhali, 25, Sadeq
Mohammed Al-Qubhali, 30, Abdulbasit
Nasser Al-Quhali, 30, and Abdulbasit
Al-Fageeh dead.

According to the security source,
another worshiper died of his injuries at
an Amran hospital, thereby bringing to
seven the death toll from the attack.
More than 10 other individuals were
injured, some seriously, and they are

The fourth of its kind in Amran governorate
Gunman Kills 7 worshipers, wounds 10 others at Amran mosque

receiving treatment at Sana’a hospitals.

“The governorate’s security depart-
ment is investigating the attacker, who
is from the same village where the
shooting occurred. Initial investiga-
tions reveal that he had disputes with
some villagers over farmland and that
he is mentally ill,” the security source
went on to say, adding, “This incident
has nothing to do with the fighting in
Sa’ada between the Yemeni army and
Houthi loyalists.”

Another security official affirmed
that Zaid walked into the mosque dur-
ing the weekly sermon and opened fire
with his assault rifle; however, he was
quickly taken into custody, noted the
official, who requested anonymity
because he was not authorized to speak
to the press.

The official described the gunman as
“deranged,” but tribal leader, who
requested not to be identified for fear of
government reprisals, dismiss the claim
of mental illness, noting that Zaid was
a driver for a local legislator.

As one area resident recounted, “He
opened fire indiscriminately because

r

Seven casualties were reported at a mosque shooting in Amran.

two of his own relatives were even
among the dead.”

The incident is the fourth of its kind
in Amran governorate where 33 wor-
shipers were burned inside a mosque
while performing Friday prayers in
another area of the governorate. The
attackers closed the doors of the
mosque in Al-Saudah area and then
ignited kerosene.

Another gunman shot dead three
worshipers at an Amran mosque in
2001, while a grenade was detonated in
2003 amid worshipers in Amran’s
Kharif area, killing one and injuring 50
others.

In recent weeks, the escalating war
between Houthi loyalists and Yemeni
army troops has spread south to Amran
and even to the suburbs of the capital,
where government bombing raids can
be heard and armored vehicles now
roam the streets. However, there’s no
evidence that Friday’s mosque attack
was related to this fighting.

Attacks on civilians have been rare
in the war between the government and
Houthi supporters, which began in

2004 in the remote mountainous gover-
norate of Sa’ada, located north of
Sana’a near the Saudi border.

However, on May 2, a bomb rigged
to a motorcycle exploded outside
another mosque in northern Sa’ada city,
killing at least 12 worshipers. Houthis
denied government accusations that
they had planned the attack, but it
seems to have spurred more fighting
between the two sides.

Following Friday’s attack, Yemeni
security officials said they had captured
the killer, identifying him as 25-year-
old local resident Abdullah Saleh Zaid

Local tribal leader Mujahid Al-
Kuhali said the attack appeared to be
related to a personal dispute.

Because Yemen is awash in
weapons, violence is relatively com-
mon in tribal areas like Amran, where
the central government has little con-
trol.

Also on Friday, two Katyusha rock-
ets were fired at an oil installation in
the southern port of Aden, officials
said, though there was no word of casu-
alties.

Although government claims to have cleared Bani Hushaish district of Houthis

Houthi fighters threaten to hit Sana’a Airport

By: Mohammed Bin Sallam

SANA’A, June 1 — “We’ve observed
fierce clashes between Yemeni military
forces and Houthi loyalists in Bani
Hushaish area since Friday morning,”
witnesses say, adding that Houthis
deployed excessively in Sana’a’s north-
east suburbs are threatening to hit
Sana’a International Airport, despite the
Defense Ministry’s announcement that
the army has driven Houthis from Bani
Hushaish and taken over strategic
mountaintop positions in the area.

Mortar attacks have been heard from
Sana’a city as the army continues
attacking mountains east and northeast
of Sana’a, in addition to the Hatarish
Mountains near Sana’a International
Airport.

Observers claim that the govern-
ment’s declaration that the Bani
Hushaish clashes had ended is an
attempt not to alert international media
outlets to what’s happening on the
ground where clashes are ongoing.

Al-Wahdawi.net, which is affiliated
with the Nasserite Unionist Popular
Organization, reports that Houthi loyal-
ists have threatened to strike Sana’a
International Airport if Yemeni army
forces don’t stop attacking their tribes-
men in Sa’ada. It adds that the Houthi
field leader in Bani Hushaish has vowed
to move the fighting into Sana’a and
attack vital state institutions.

Authorities have heightened security
around Sana’a Airport in the expectation
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that Houthis may target the installation.

Tribal sources in Sa’ada governorate
note that the confrontations between
Houthis and the Yemeni army are
expanding in various districts, particu-
larly in Jaamala area. This comes after
government sources affirmed that the
army had seized control of strategic
positions in  Sa’ada;  however,
Abdulmalik Al-Houthi’s office denies
this allegation, maintaining that his sup-
porters control most of the strategic mil-
itary positions.

Amran governorate also is experienc-
ing ongoing armed confrontations
between government forces and Houthi
loyalists in Harf Sifyan and Houth dis-
tricts. Other clashes occurred northeast
of Harf Sifyan in the areas of Majzaa
and Shibarq after the Sana’a-Sa’ada
Highway once again was blocked last
weekend. Houthis burned a military
truck loaded with food supplies and car

tires on its way to Sa’ada.

Other tribal sources claim that Houthi
supporters in Amran seized two military
trucks loaded with ammunition and
ordinance and arrested their accompany-
ing soldiers. According to witnesses in
Amran, hundreds on both sides have
been killed, their bodies left to decay out
in the open, and many civilians’ homes
have been destroyed.

At its first meeting of the season on
Saturday, Parliament approved sum-
moning the appropriate Cabinet minis-
ters to discuss the security situation and
the renewed clashes in Sa’ada, designat-
ing the coming weekend as the deadline
for the Cabinet ministers to brief its
members on what’s happening on the
ground in Sa’ada and other areas and
submit an urgent report thereupon.

Charges by Sheikh Sultan Al-
Barakani, head of the General People’s
Congress’s  parliamentary  caucus,

directed at opposition parties and accus-
ing them of collaborating with Houthis
provoked outrage in the Yemeni
Parliament. According to members of
Parliament, such accusations neither
serve the national interest, nor con-
tribute to resolving the country’s press-
ing problems.

The MPs added that the nation is
experiencing harsh circumstances and
there’s no need to falsely charge effec-
tive opposition forces like the Joint
Meeting Parties, especially when,
“Everyone knows the government is
responsible for the nation’s current com-
plicated problems and their negative
consequences.”

A campaign entitled, “Together
against the Sa’ada Fighting,” organized
by numerous nongovernmental organi-
zations, rights groups and political dig-
nitaries, had planned a June 1 sit-in at
the Presidential Palace. Being prevented
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from doing so at that location, the par-
ticipants then headed toward Parliament
to hold their sit-in there and submit a let-
ter of appeal to end the fighting in
Sa’ada.

According to a statement by the cam-
paign’s organizers, the sit-in seeks to
end the Sa’ada fighting and resolve its

consequences, as well as unblock area
roads for relief and humanitarian organ-
izations to reach affected residents. A
further aim is to engage the media, vari-
ous constitutional and civil institutions,
NGOs and political parties in mediation
efforts to end the four-year fighting.
Continued on page 2

Qarnaw

For Oilfield Services

(A Member of Al Sha1f Intn 1 Group)

Qarnaw focuses
on delivering the
best solutions and
multi-services
to our clients.

Tel: 01 448447/8, Fax: 01 448446. 3rd Floor,
Sana’a Trade Center, Sana’a, Republic of Yemen
E-M: godwin@garnaw.com W: www.shaifgroup.com

Yemen Commercial Bank

" Tntii Bankmg

( Toll free  BODBO0OO
3 Phone 01-299988

A distance between you and your account

S, PR TP

o it gl gy e e

ol gl g e )l
Ay g oS ol ey gy 3
bl gy slgh gy ol

a_mb)\ o mq.ﬂ\

2 gl Sl Blish gt ot S gy gl s d
Ml g it g ) SR e Bt AR 1
dadlge
) a3 B iy it ey
o ity o s 1 el il el s

N il e g g gl oy Ll 3G St A0

& Blwlk)wuﬁﬁjlﬁﬁ
1 40T, 015604 R s W - Tl o) )
18T i s« 40 o iy i foll
00365112 a1 3101 - - g e o )
&) WD Giroe spsappom ety sty )

Stoddl gy lndll 2Ll

Wherever you are ....
whenever you need




2 2 June, 2008

Around the Nation

In Brief

SANA'A
SNACC to show 1st Corruption

Cases National Survey’s results
The Supreme National Authority for
Competing Corruption (SNACC) is
to organize Sunday a workshop on
the initial results of the first National
Survey for Corruption Cases in
Yemen.

The workshop aims to discuss the
initial outcomes of the first corrup-
tion survey in Yemen carried out in
cooperation with World Bank.
A number of experts will take part in
the workshop representing the
Central Organization for Controlling
and Audit (COCA), Supreme Tender
Committee, Anti-Money Laundering
Unit at the Central Bank of Yemen
(CBY), ministries of justice, interior,
planning and Sana’a University.

Diplomat’s Spouse Association
supports children emergency unit
Arab and Foreign Diplomat’s Spouse
Association in Yemen affirmed in its
meeting on Saturday support for
equipping unit of children emer-
gency in Al-Kuwait University
Hospital in Sana’a.
In a statement to Saba, chairwomen
of Children Emergency Section in
the hospital Hala al-Kherbash said
that Unit of Children Emergency was
introduced recently including the lat-
est apparatuses, equipment and med-
ical services aimed at providing
excellent emergency services for
children, pointing out that equipment
provided by the association cost
around $55 thousand.

ADEN
Presidential orders to release 75
prisoners in Aden

Upon directions from President Ali
Abdullah Saleh,75 prisoners, among
of them four women have been
released after finishing three quarters
of the period of their imprisonment.
Governor of Aden Adnan al-Jefry,
who attended release ceremony
along with Human Right Minister
Huda Al-Ban, clarified that accord-
ing to president’s directions, the gov-
ernment had paid the YR 1,939000
worth rights prisoners have been sen-
tenced to pay to others.

Al-Jefry stated to Saba that prison-
ers’ release is a pardon from the pres-
ident on the occasion of the 18th
anniversary of Yemen’s reunifica-
tion.

HODEIDA

Eritrean pirates seize Yemeni

boats in international waters
Eritrean pirates have seized in the last
few days five Yemeni boats in the
Red Sea, the GPC-run almotamar.net
has reported.

Governor of Hodeida province
Ahmed Salim al-Jabali ordered the
competent authorities to recover the
boats as soon as possible and accord-
ing to effective laws. Al-Jabali also
urged the authorities to put an end to
the pirate attacks against Yemeni
boats.

Yemeni fishermen usually suffer
from baseless confiscation of their
boats by Eritrean coastguards who
used to take away Yemeni boats in
the international waters and deport
Yemeni fishermen violently.

Yemeni fishermen face many risks
while coming back home after being
held by Eritreans.

Total launches scholarship
program for Yemenis
The French Oil Total company has
announced a new scholarship pro-
gram that will enable Yemenis to
study abroad.

General Manager of the company
in Yemen Martin Deffontaines told
Saba that the scholarships would be
granted to Yemeni nationals across
the country.
Deffontaines added that the program
includes five undergraduate scholar-
ships for Yemeni youth, three inten-
sive diplomas for junior engineers
from the Ministry of Oil and
Minerals, and two Master’s level
scholarships for students from the
Institute of Diplomacy.
Such program comes to strengthen
ties between the company and
Yemen, he said.

Last March, the French company
celebrated production of 100 million
barrels during its 20 years work in
Yemen.

Total is one of the biggest
investors in Yemen, and also runs
programs to facilitate access to clean
water, electricity, healthcare, and
education in the Shabwa and
Hadramout governorates, where the
company runs extensive operations.

No change in U.S. laws for
gat-chewing resident visa applicants

By: Sarah Wolff

SANA'A, May 31— There are no
changes in the laws passed for qat-
chewers who are applying for residen-
tial visas to the United States, despite
rumors of Yemeni governmental inter-

vention, according to embassy
spokespersons.
The U.S. embassy in Yemen

demands that applicants be qat-free for
three years before moving permanently
to the U.S., and Yemenis who want this
type of visa must undergo a medical
examination at embassy-approved
facilities.

Qat is considered an illegal sub-
stance in the U.S. because it contains a
Schedule I narcotic known as cathi-
none, a highly addictive substance
which has no known medical uses. The
Immigration and Nationality Act
expressly forbids drug addicts from
taking up permanent residence in the
U.S., labeling it a "Class A" medical
ineligibility. Once qat users have been
clean for three years, they can again be
considered for a residency visa.
Yemenis applying for tourist visas do
not have to be tested for qat use.

In April, Yemeni students studying
in the U.S. asked President Ali
Abdullah Saleh to urge the U.S.

Qat chewers will not be granted U.S. residency visas unless they prove they
have been ‘“clean” for three years

embassy in Sana'a to cancel this rule
and call U.S. ambassador Steven Seche
to discuss the situation. The Yemeni
student community in the U.S. added
that they are obliged to follow U.S.
laws during their stay in the country
and that they did not chew qat while
there. An estimated 80 to 90 percent of
Yemenis chew qat.

The former Minister of Expatriate
Affairs, Saleh Sumi'e, who was ousted
from the Cabinet by a republican
decree and charged with corruption,
had previously publicly requested a
meeting with the embassy's consular

affairs bureau as reported in Al-
Siyasiya newspaper. Though the meet-
ing did take place, embassy sources
said that Sumi'e did not request a
change in the policy.

Sumi'e, along with nine other minis-
ters who were either removed or reas-
signed, has been referred to the
National Panel for Combating
Corruption.

Ahmad Hussein was named as
Sumi'e's replacement shortly over a
week ago, but there is no word yet
about Hussein's prospective actions to
appeal this provision.

Prime Minister launches 25th round
of ESCWA conference

By: Mahmoud Assamiee

SANA'A, May 28 — Yemen hosted the
meeting of regional minds that com-
prise the United Nations' Economic
and Social Commission for Western
Asia (ESCWA) from May 26 and 29 in
Sana'a, with Prime Minister Ali
Mujawar opening the 25th round of the
session.

ESCWA is a United Nations (UN)
agency that works specifically with
Western Asian countries including all
those in the Gulf and Levant. Senior
officials, regional ministers and vari-
ous representatives from UN agencies
meet every two years to discuss how
development — social, financial, politi-
cal — can be as a tool to reach the
Millennium Development Goals set
out by the UN.

Ban Ki-moon, who wrote an address
for the meeting that was delivered by
ESCWA executive secretary Badr
Omar Al-Dafa, said that he had confi-
dence that the 25th round would reflect
regional contributions and intentions
for realizing all the Millennium
Development Goals in due time.

"ESCWA is in a position to perform
an active role in social and economic

development in the region since it is an
unaligned body with international
ideals," added Ban.

In his opening speech, Mujawar dis-
cussed the development achievements
Yemen has realized since the last
ESCWA meeting, stating that the coun-
try achieved progress despite difficul-
ties and challenges facing the nation
and the region in general.

Concerning social development, he
indicated that since the last meeting
two years ago, the country has wit-
nessed progress in health, education,
social protection and enabling female
social participation, and asserted that
the government is working on realizing
the Millennium Development Goals.

He clarified that the economic sector
has witnessed real growth as the gross
domestic product (GDP) grew more
than four percent between 2000 and
2006. Al-Mujawar noted that the same
period witnessed a decrease in oil pro-
duction, while non-oil sectors have
grown considerably to reach over five
percent of the GDP.

He said he expected that economic
growth would increase to six percent of
the GDP from 2008 to 2010 due to
other exports like liquefied natural gas

and new economic and administrative
reforms that will be implemented in
early 2009. Al-Mujawar also noted that
Yemen put three new anti-corruption
laws into place and emphasized the
role played by regional and interna-
tional organizations, namely the UN, in
serving countries of the region in gen-
eral and Yemen in particular.

Meanwhile, Saudi Minister of
Economy and Planning Khaled Al-
Qusaibi highlighted Yemen's role as
host of the commission's meetings.

The Saudi minister, who chaired
ESCWA's 24th round, indicated that
despite the challenges it has faced, the
commission could realize all planned
aims set out in its 2007 agenda.

After the opening session, Saudi
Arabia handed over chairmanship of
ESCWA's 25th round to Yemen. Work
sessions began shortly thereafter, fea-
turing ESCWA Executive Secretary's
report on the commission's activities
from the past year and creating a new
agenda for the year to come.

The conference reviewed upper-
management issues, approving an
international transport treaty in Eastern
Arab countries and formally asked the
Republic of Sudan to join ESCWA.

Workshop trains local health
workers to record accurate statistics

By: Moneer Al-Homaidi

SANA'A, May 25 —The Minister of
Health and Population, Abdul Kareem
Rasa' , recently held a training course
at the Movenpick hotel in Sana'a on
how to improve Yemen's capacity to
monitor HIV/AIDS, tuberculosis [TB]
and malaria. The workshop was
financed by Global Fund, a multilater-
al organization that finances and loans
money to other organizations to help
fight these three diseases worldwide,
and ran from May 25 to 27.

During the workshop, Professor
Julian Gold, senior staff specialist and
director of the WHO Collaboration
Center, supervised the project and
introduced the Monitoring and
Evaluation Systems into the work-
shop's agenda.

Gold directed the participants in the
workshop, who came from the
Ministry of Health and Population, the
Ministry of Finance, the Ministry of
Endowments, and various civil society
organizations, to divide themselves
into three discussion groups according
to their fields: one for HIV/AIDS spe-
cialists, one for tuberculosis special-
ists and another group for malaria spe-

cialists.

They were all given a questionnaire
to voice their opinions on how Yemen
treats patients with these diseases.
Through these questionnaires, the par-
ticipants weighed the strengths and the
weaknesses of Yemen's capacity to
monitor HIV/AIDS, tuberculosis and
malaria, then discussed possible plans
of action for dealing with these three
deadly and pervasive killers.

At the end of the three-day program,
the groups came together to present
their collective thoughts about imple-
menting their plans in the field. The
groups said that one of Yemen's
strengths is the Health Ministry's lead-
ership and advocacy of the anti-TB
program. One of Yemen's weaknesses
in monitoring these diseases stems
from local health workers, who do not
collect data according to guidelines.
Disease statistics are recorded through
census information, spot checks and
field visits to hospitals and treatment
centers. If this information is not
recorded properly, it will skew
Yemen's statistics on disease preva-
lence. For this particular problem, the
three groups suggested holding a bi-
annual training course in data collec-

tion for local health workers so that
they can record the number of
HIV/AIDS, malaria and TB patients
more accurately.

The UN's most recent report on
Yemen's progress towards the
Millennium Development Goals
[MDGs] said that there was insuffi-
cient data to find out if Yemen would
meet the goal of controlling
HIV/AIDS by 2015. The reported stat-
ed that although the disease in not
widespread in Yemen, there is "weak
institutional capacity to tackle
HIV/AIDS, insufficient monitoring
and surveillance of blood donations
and transfusions and social stigmatiza-
tion of patients."

The UN report added that though it
has high incidence rates of malaria and
TB, Yemen has made strides to bring
these diseases under control and could
potentially reach the MDG set out for
the country.

Additionally, the Deputy Minister of
Health and Population in the primary
health care sector, Majid Al-Gonaid,
assured the techniques the three
groups decided on could be used to
help patients of these diseases in all
Yemeni governorates.

Sheba Center for Strategic
Studies launches workshop on
youth extremism

By: Yemen Times staff and the
Sheba Center for Strategic Studies

SANA’A, May 29 — The Sheba
Center for Strategic Studies hosted its
first-ever workshop on extremism
among youth in Yemen last week. The
center invited several social digni-
taries, politicians and foreign ambas-
sadors to participate in the workshop,
where four working papers were pre-
sented on the topic.

In a speech at the workshop, presi-
dential political advisor Abdulkarim
Al-Eryani stated that improving cur-
ricula at all educational levels, but par-
ticularly basic education, will protect
society from terrorism.

Yemen also must breed tolerance
and make further strides in economic
development by creating job opportu-
nities if it wants to safeguard against
any future terrorist attacks and youth
recruitment.

Al-Eryani emphasized that poverty,
poor education and copious amounts
of idle time also contribute to extrem-
ism. “This workshop is attempting to
address extremism among Yemeni
youths, as 60 percent of Yemeni socie-
ty is under age 25,” he pointed out.

The four working papers presented
at the workshop attempted to highlight
the causes and risks of extremism
among Yemeni youth. Sheba Center
director Ahmed Saif Al-Masabi pre-
sented two papers, the first of which
was entitled, “Problematic
Conceptualization,” and explored the
idea of terrorism compared to the real-
ity.

Terrorism should be defined by
looking deeply into the matter itself.
The issue shouldn’t be attributed to
some compelling social or economic
circumstance, nor as a reaction to
Western dominance of Arab and
Islamic society,” Al-Masabi said,
adding, “We must read and review
critically our religious and political
legacy.”

The director’s second paper, enti-
tled, “An Exit Strategy from
Terrorism,” criticized Western media
for equating Islam with terrorism, say-
ing such bias won’t serve anyone and
will provoke a severe reaction by
Muslims.

“It’s extremely significant to high-
light the difference between true Islam
and the wrong interpretation of Islam
being adopted by terrorists. We must-
n’t allow terrorists to claim that they
are the true and legitimate representa-
tives of Islam,” Al-Masabi said.

Mohammed Al-Maitami, secretary-
general of the Chamber of Commerce,
presented a paper entitled, “The
Socio-economic ~ Factor  Behind
Extremism,” suggesting targeting
leadership to deal with the source of
terrorism.

He also advocated alleviating the
pressures upon youths, which will
keep from driving them toward joining
terrorist organizations. Al-Maitami
also explored the success stories of
several nations’ programs in this
respect, including the Saudi Prisoner
Release Program and the Yemeni
Dialogue Program

The final paper, entitled, “Social
Breeding and its Role in Determining
Extremism Among Yemeni Youth,”
pointed to the lack of family ties that
first increases domestic violence then
gives rise to extremism.

At the concluding session, Sheba
Center board chairman Hussein Al-
Ameri highlighted the center’s objec-
tives. “The center [works] in four
main fields: the strategic, political,
social and economic arenas,” he said,
noting that the center hopes to publish
an annual report entitled the Sheba
Magazine for Middle East Studies

The Sheba Center for Strategic
Studies seeks to provide decision-
makers in Yemen rational policy alter-
natives via several means, such as
publications, workshops, periodicals
and special reports.

Minister of Information will
launch a religious TV channel

By: Almigdad Dahesh Mojalli

SANA’A,MAY, 31 — The Minister of
Information announced his intention
to launch a religious satellite channel,
but did not reveal when the channel
will start broadcasting.

The Minister of Information Hassan
Al-Lawzi said the decision to launch
his Al-Iman Channel was, “a real
vision of the media's role and duties
towards Islam and its issues." One of
the important goals of Al-Iman
Channel is to educate and make people
aware of Islam as a faith, along with
its morals and rules.

He also noted the significance of the
media's role in presenting Islam,
pointing out its significance for all
peoples and confronting the distorted
picture of Islam "reflected by its ene-
mies."

Al-Lawzi said that the channel will
be neither fanatical nor extremist, and
in accordance with Sharia law. The
channel will present Islam's legacy
and its strong points to viewers.
However, he did not reveal where in
and outside of the country the channel
plans to broadcast.

“This is a serious and committed
contingency embodying all the con-
tents of the media policy stated by the

government and besides that, is mak-
ing all principles of Islam confront
individuals' general behaviors and
responsibilities,” added Al-Lawzi.

He said that the current struggle is
to support the rights of learning and
knowledge, present the news and to
bestow credibility and objectivity by
showing opposing opinions and
thoughts.

The Minister of Endowment,
Hamoud Al-Hitar pointed out the cru-
cial need of specialized preachers
taught specifically by the Ministry of
Endowment and the need for a spe-
cialized Islamic media where preach-
ers touch on daily issues from the
Islamic viewpoint.

He also touched on the role that Al-
Iman channel will play in spreading
righteous thoughts and refuting lies.
“The western media tries to distort the
image of Islam and we have to present
the right one, as God has given us, and
to bring out moderation in our reli-
gion,” said Al-Hitar.

According to the media law in
Yemen, TV channels and radio sta-
tions have to get approval from the
Ministry of Information before broad-
casting. So far Yemen has two satellite
channels broadcast from Yemen and
one that airs from Egypt.

Continued from page 1

“Together against the Sa’ada
Fighting” launched on June 24, 2007
as an initiative by politicians, human
rights activists and media personnel
to settle the ongoing Sa’ada clashes,
which have left thousands dead or
injured on both sides since fighting
first broke out in June 2004.

Sa’ada tribal sources further noted
that Houthis attacked two Saudi mil-
itary vehicles patrolling the Saudi

Houthi fighters threaten to hit Sana’a Airport

border with Yemen in Al-Malahidh
area last Tuesday. While there’s no
clear reason why the Saudi army was
patrolling an area near the site of the
fighting between Houthis and the
Yemeni army, the same sources dis-
closed that a Saudi official visited
Sana’a last Monday, deliberating
with Yemeni government officials
about how to quell the Sa’ada rebel-
lion.
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Saudi Contributes

US$ 500 million to WFP appeal
The Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, under
the guidance of the Custodian of the
Two Holy Mosques King Abdullah Bin
Abdulaziz Al Saud, responded to the
World Food Programme’s extraordi-
nary appeal by committing US$500
million their largest-ever contribution
to any UN agency — to help the organi-
zation alleviate the suffering of millions
of hungry people affected by high food
prices.

“This extraordinarily generous dona-
tion is historic,” said WFP Executive
Director Josette Sheeran. “The Saudis
are major players in global humanitari-
an action. Today’s donation will keep
many people from dying, others from
slipping into malnutrition and disease,
and will even help to stave off civil
unrest.”

With Saudi Arabia’s generous
pledge, the special appeal for rising
food prices launched by WFP in March
has been met, and funds are now avail-
able for critical operations which have
been insufficiently funded, especially
in Africa and other parts of the world.
WEFP needs to feed at least 73 million
people worldwide this year.

As the Saudi cash donation is not ear-
marked to any one country or opera-
tion, WFP has maximum flexibility to
use the funds to address areas of great-
est needs. These include helping to
nourish millions of children — those
most vulnerable to the effects of hunger
— enrolled in school and therapeutic

feeding programmes in Kenya,
Cambodia, Yemen, Ethiopia and
Somalia.

“This is a symbol of what can happen
when humanitarians come together to
rise to the kind of challenges and
human suffering which face us in the
world today,” said Sheeran.

Today’s half-billion dollar contribu-
tion puts the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
at the forefront of the large-scale, high-
level, multilateral UN action by the
global community, focused on emer-
gency and longer-term solutions to the
high food and fuel price crisis which is
sweeping the globe. More costly food is

drhiers New:s:

leaving in its wake drastically increased
levels of hunger and poverty, and in
some places, provoking riots and desta-
bilising governments.

High food prices represent the
biggest challenge that WFP has faced in
its 45-year history. Analysis underway
by WFP experts supports World Bank
estimates of around 100 million people
being pushed deeper into poverty.

WFP is the world’s largest humani-
tarian agency: this year, WFP plans to
feed more than 70 million people in
around 80 countries.

WEFP now provides RSS feeds to help
journalists keep up with the latest press
releases, videos and photos as they are
published on WFP.org.

For more details see:
http://www.wfp.org/english/7n=999.

Barwa International
commences investments in
Sudan by buying 3mn sq m plot
Barwa International Company, the
global arm of Barwa Real Estate
Company, has bought a large land in
Sudan for developing a commercial and
residential project. The land deal was
finalised on the 3rd of this month, in

Khartoum, the Sudanese capital.

The plot admeasures 3mn sq m and is
located in Al Jazeerah state, one of the
largest states in Sudan, on the main
road leading to the centre of Khartoum.
Besides, it is only 30 minutes drive
from Khartoum international airport.

Mr. Ghassan Abdullah Albinali,
chief executive officer of Barwa
International, said the company had
launched the Sudanese project after
studying the local market and the need
for integrated real estate projects in that
country.

The company examined more than
one plot but settled to choose this land
in particular because of its numerous
merits, some of which are being close
to the capital, the international airport
and being close to modern public com-
pounds.

Mr. Albinali added: “The acquired
land had all the necessary clearances

for starting the project this is along to
other economical advantages. In addi-
tion, the licenses given include estab-
lishing a hotel, hotel apartments, an
international school and a university for
post graduate studies. Also, there will
be villas, residential complex, offices
and a commercial complex.”

Mr. Albinali clarified that the
Company started setting up the general
plan for the project with the assistance
of companies with international experi-
ence. He added: “We expect the pro-
ject’s general plan will be licensed by
the concerned entities before the end of
this year. This shall be followed by
starting with the project’s infrastruc-
ture, building models of villas, and
other buildings planned in the project.”

Albinali also announced: “The
Company established Sudan Barwa
Company for the purpose of invest-
ing in Sudan. The company will also
open an office in Khartoum.”

About Barwa International:

Barwa International is the international
arm of Barwa Real Estate, a leading
real estate company in Qatar, which has
executed many mega projects in Qatar,
GCC and Egypt. Its lists of local proj-
ects include Barwa Al Khor, Barwa
Housing Programme, Barwa Doha,
Barwa Financial District, Barwa City,
Barwa Al Qassar, Barwa Al Barah,
Barwa Commercial Street and the
Exhibition Centre. The company is cur-
rently building the tallest tower in
Qatar. Barwa International’s portfolio
includes many European countries such
as the UK, France, Germany and
Switzerland in addition to other devel-
opments in other parts of the world.
Also, the Barwa Real Estate Bank was
recently established to help Barwa exe-
cute its huge real estate and construc-
tion projects and is considered to be
Qatar’s first bank dedicated to the real
estate and construction industry.

Call for Participation in an
International Conference of NGOs
This is a Call for Participation in an

International Conference of NGOs
holding from 19th July till the 30th of
July 2008 in London, United Kingdom
where as many as 200 participants from
across the world including Health
Practitioners, Professionals in relevant
fields, Lawyers, Psychologists, Women
and Youth Development Groups,
Government Officials, Donor Agencies
and participating NGOs will meet to
discuss issues pertaining to the Welfare
of NGOs...and also to meet others like
yourself; to learn, teach, inspire and
being inspired. This event will be
exploring the potential of a practical
approach that will unleash and nurture
the human capacity to create, collabo-
rate and change positively, the world at
large.

What are the objectives of this meet-
ing? The meeting will provide a medi-
um where participating individuals and
NGOs will convene to address and dis-
cuss ways of improving key
Humanitarian issues and topics with
much emphasis on Human Rights,
Gender Equality, Peace and Security,
Social and Economic Development,
Youth and Children, Health Education,
Ethics and Value and Environmental
Protection. Participating NGOs will
have direct access to grants by
International Donor Agencies. The
opening Lecture will be held by Dr Mrs
Artemisa Franco who is the President
of the Center for Human Rights
Research and Development, Maputo -
Mozambique.The  program  will
include:

* Thought-provoking plenaries

* In-depth breakout and dinner ses-
sions for strategy-development

* Capacity and skills-building sessions;
and

* Debates to stimulate discussion.

In addition to the main program, the
meeting will also host book launches,
artistic and cultural activities, exhibi-
tions, plenty of space and opportunity
for informal networking and alliance
building. All plenaries and selected
breakout sessions will have interpreta-
tion into English, Spanish and French.

Who can participate? What happens
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PROVIDING A HIGH QUALITY EDUCATION FOR 35 YEARS

A TRADITION OF EXCELLENCE

Beautiful purpose-built facilities on a spacious 34 acre site in a countryside setting.
Sports facilities include soccer and softball fields, basketball and tennis courts.
Large indoor multi-purpose area for volleyball, basketball, badminton, gymnastics,
table tennis, musical and dramatic productions.
Bus service available.

AT

Performance-Based curriculum for 5 years of age through secondary school
Personalized education/small class sizes run by highly qualified & experienced teachers
Over 40 computers available for student use, and computer instruction for all ages
Extensive after school activity program involving music, art, craft, drama, & sports
Advanced Placement (AP) college level courses available for qualified students
Graduates attend American, Canadian, European, and Middle Eastern universities

QIS Pre-School

Specific age appropriate experiences for 2, 3 and 4 year olds

Attractive premises near the French Embassy including a garden and play area
Certified experienced British teacher assisted by paraprofessionals

School hours are from 7:55 a.m. to 12:00 nhoon (Saturday through Wednesday)
Arabic program from 12:00 noon - 2:30 p.m.

Phone: 370 191-2 Fax: 370 193
Email: gordonblackie@qsi.org Web site: http://yem.qsi.org

Accredited by the Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools MSA)
Member of Quality Schools International

if more than 200 participants apply?
Anyone who is a member of an NGO,
Professionals in related fields, Students
Unions, Lecturers of Universities and
Community based organizations, the
Clergy as well as women and youth
development groups can apply to par-
ticipate.

If more than 200 people apply (as we
anticipate), a global selection commit-
tee will select a representative 200 from
among the applicants. This committee
will ensure that the participants at the
meeting are truly international and rep-
resent a diverse range of interests,
issues, and regions.

The events shall commence on the
19th July till the 30th of July 2008 in

London at Abba Queens Gate Hotel
London.

I can’t afford the cost - Can you
help? Juan kroc foundation Foundation
has set up an Access Fund to support
the travel costs for all qualified partici-
pants.

How do I apply, and when is the
deadline? All Interested organizations
should send an email to the Local
Organizing Committee. Participants
MUST be a group of 1-3 persons to
qualify for registration.

Contact  Person:
solomon
Email:
JUANKROCFOUNDATION2000
@yahoo.com

Rev.George

DFID

Department for International Development
Management of Yemen Justice and Policing Programme
Reference CNTR 200808435

The Department for International Development (DFID) wishes to engage the services of a
Managing Consultant for a new justice and policing programme in Yemen. The purpose of the
programme is to support the Government of Yemen (GoY) and civil society to develop more
effective, accessible and fairer justice and policing services for all Yemenis. It will involve
work on capacity building in key institutions, local service delivery and donor/sectoral coordi-
nation. The Managing Consultants will be responsible for the effective management and
implementation of the programme, including through the establishment of a Programme
Management Unit in Sana’a, provision of long-term and short-term advisers for the
Government of Yemen on policing and criminal justice, and management of an international
non-governmental organisation working on local service delivery. The Managing Consultants
will work closely with the GoY and will therefore require strong political analysis skills. The
Managing Consultants will also be expected to have strong experience of justice and policing
programmes in developing countries (preferably in the Middle East); a proven track record on
project management; access to quality personnel with strong technical policing and justice
expertise and experience, and Arabic language skills.

Site or location of works, place or delivery of performance is Yemen
Duration of the contract is up to 60 months with the possibility of extension of up to 12 months.

Please refer to the DFID website at www.dfid.gov.uk/procurement/contractopportunities.asp

Department for
International
Development

for a copy of the full OJEU notice, draft Terms of Reference and details required for comple-
tion of Expressions of Interest (EOIs), including the required Application Form. EOIs will be
evaluated against the criteria outlined in the Application Form.

As from April 2001 all UK development assistance has been fully untied, which allows sup-
pliers from anywhere in the world to tender for DFID projects.

respectively.

—

SAFER

SAFER EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION
OPERATIONS COMPANY (“SEPOC”)

IMMEDIATE

JOB OPENINGS

SAFER EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION OPERATIONS
COMPANY (“SEPOC”)

SEPOC is the Republic of Yemen’s leading national oil and gas Company.
It is the upstream Operator of Yemen’s premier Marib Block (18) and
largest and second largest producer of gas and oil in the country

SEPOC is embarking on an aggressive growth plan. As part of its expansion
project, SEPOC is currently seeking to expand its workforce by hiring the
following talented, qualified and dedicated professionals who desire a
fulfilling and rewarding career with a growing and outstanding organization:

1. Job Title: Mechanical Technician
2. Job Title: IT Analyst
3. Job Title: Application Project Team Leader

Job Details of the above and other positions are posted on ‘Careers’ at
SAFER’S Website: WWW.S€pocye.com.

To apply and process your application and CVs online for the above
positions, please visit SAFER’S Website.
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Al-Jazeera top news editor Samir Khader:

“I’m a soldier at the service of the community”’

By: Alia Ishaq

amir Khader, a Jordanian jour-

nalist who leads the Al-Jazeera

Arabic language television

news channel, was in Sana’a

for six days to lead an inves-
tigative journalism workshop for mem-
bers of the Yemeni media.

In cooperation with a group of non-
governmental organizations, the Al-
Jazeera Training Center held the work-
shop at the Taj Sheba hotel in Sana’a from
May 24-29. Funding for the training was
provided by the United States Agency for
International Development, or USAID.

With nearly 30 years of experience in
the media, Khader has been employed by
Al-Jazeera since 1998 and is in charge of
nearly all news and special coverage for
the channel.

He and 20 Yemeni journalists worked
on research, interviewing, writing tech-
niques and investigative ethics. Khader

of knowledge and education. A journalist
is someone who knows something about
everything, but not necessarily everything
about something. No university can give
you that. You have to build it yourself; it’s
self-education.

We should be convinced that this [jour-
nalism] is our mission in life, always
reminding ourselves that we have a mes-
sage. True journalism means remaining
neutral — of course, not 100 percent
because that doesn’t exist — but at least
balanced. We should strive to do this
every day, hour and minute until it’s
accomplished.

What do you think of the state of the
media in Yemen?

Media is a general term. In Yemen, you
only have government television and
radio. You have many newspapers, some
daily and some weekly. The Yemeni
media resembles media in many Third
World countries 20 years ago and it still

Yemen Times participant Alia Ishaq and Al-Jazeera's Samir Khader. Khader
is a Jordanian journalist with nearly 30 years of experience in the field, and
has covered crises and conflicts all over the world.

spoke with the Yemen Times regarding
his thoughts about the Yemeni media,
female journalists and why it’s worth risk-
ing his life in order to deliver the news.

What is your evaluation of this inves-
tigative journalism workshop you led
for members of the Yemeni media?
This is a really good start for the Yemeni
journalism syndicate in terms of taking
care of young journalists and exposing
them to experiences from other parts of
the world in order to learn more about
investigative journalism, which isn’t well-
known in the Arab world, although it’s the
core of journalism.

The [Yemeni] journalists were terrific
and eager to learn. They obviously
believe in their mission in life. They want
to do something; however, they still lack
many things, including a solid back-
ground and discipline, in addition to train-
ing. It’s not enough to go to university and
graduate with a degree. You must observe
what others do because it’s really impor-
tant to mix cultures. When I say “cul-
tures,” I mean journalistic cultures.

You have to benefit from what others
do, learn why they do it and then decide
whether you can apply this in your own
context and environment — what you can
take from it and what you can reject. This
is really important in order to build a solid
experience.

Are you saying Yemeni journalists lack
experience?
Of course, it’s experience that matters. At
university, you have only theories; you
don’t have practice, so they need to prac-
tice more.

In addition to practice, it’s also a matter

lacks many things.

However, you have something that few
countries have — motivated journalists.
These journalists must build for the
future, but you can’t build the future
depending on your own desires and prac-
tices. I think these journalists first need
experience and exposure. Journalists here
are the basis for any good future for this
country. Also, it’s really good to have a
variety of press in this country, all coex-
isting with each other, whether they’re
governmental, opposition or independent
[news sources]. Journalists here must
know that it’s ok to work at a newspaper
belonging to one of the political parties.
However, they should accept each other’s
viewpoints because pluralism is really
important. I’ve met journalists here who
have the idea that because they work fora
certain newspaper belonging to one of the
parties, they must be completely attached
to this newspaper and its point of view.
You can attack others — and this is your
right — but be nice sometimes.

You’ve been to Yemen before. Do you
find any changes here since your last
visit?

I’ve been to Yemen dozens of times; the
last time I came was four years ago. Of
course, [there are] big differences! A soci-
ety that doesn’t change over the course of
a year is considered a dead society,
whereas Yemeni society is a vibrant soci-
ety. I see a big difference in the streets,
cars and buildings.

Many people consider investigative
journalism a place for only men, with
some maintaining that it’s a dangerous
field for women. Do you agree?

Of course not! This is a one-sided view of
the term journalism because journalism is
one of the rare fields where women can
beat men in all areas. There’s no such
thing as women working only in “gener-
al” journalism and not investigative jour-
nalism. Investigative journalism simply
means going out into the field and build-
ing a story from scratch. In fact, you’re
doing it right now and you’re a woman!

Women can do better than men, even in
conflict zones. At Al-Jazeera, many of our
journalists in conflict zones are women.
For example, two years ago when we cov-
ered the war in Lebanon, one of our best
journalists there was a woman named
Katia Nasir.

You’ve covered several wars. Can you
tell us about your experience and how
many wars you’ve covered as a
reporter?

Covering a war is like covering any other
world event, apart from the fact that you
have to consider the risks, asking yourself
whether you’re ready for those risks.
Other than that, it’s a story like any other.

Of course, you sometimes have to be
willing to live in difficult situations. For
example, you might not find a bed, so you
may have to sleep on the street or in the
bushes. The risks sometimes might
involve being shot and you have to accept
that. However, if you believe in God and
that your life is in His hands, nothing
[else] is important.

I've covered the Iran-Iraq war, the
Bosnian war, the U.S. invasion of
Somalia, the first Gulf War between the
United States and Iraq in 1991, the 2003
[U.S.] invasion of Iraq and the 2006 war
in Lebanon between Hezbollah and Israel.

[P,
OGENERML

A group of twenty Yemeni journalists took part in an investigative journalism one-week intensive course with Al-
Jazeera Arabic news television editor Samir Khader last week.

Do you think it’s worth it to risk your
life in such ways?

Of course it is. Do you think it’s worth
it for a soldier to risk his life?

Do you see yourself as a soldier?
I’'m a soldier at the service of the commu-
nity.

Do you regret anything you did while
covering these wars?

Of course not. No one should regret any-
thing because you can benefit from every-
thing you’ve done. Even if you make mis-
takes, you can still learn from them. If you
should happen to do great things, you
should ask yourself what were the ele-
ments of success in order to transmit them
to the next generation.

What’s your biggest challenge as a
journalist?

The challenge facing every journalist is to
remain neutral in all conflicts. Your heart

The intelligent choice in comfort

Perfect installation

When you buy a General air conditions

You wil get the best care..

One Graphics

=il

Wa ariacad L Faat psheery

=5

Sole Agent :
Head Office :
Sana'a - Tel. 281115 - Aden:

always leads you to one side or the other,
but you must struggle to remain neutral
because this is the basis of journalism.

Obviously, there are differences
between Arab and Western media.
Having worked on both sides, what are
the main differences you notice?

At the time, those in the West practiced
sound journalism, which is real journal-
ism, but in the Arab world, we practiced
something we called journalism, but it
wasn’t really journalism.

However, I'm now honored to be part
of the first experience of true journalism
in the Arab world because Al-Jazeera
functions exactly like any good Western
media outlet. Like many of my Al-Jazeera
colleagues who worked in Western media
for a time, we took that experience and
tried to prove to everyone that we can do
the same in the Arab world.

Some said Arabs couldn’t produce pro-
fessional media, but we proved them

wrong! And we aren’t the only ones, as
other channels and newspapers now are
doing the same. We now have print media
in the Arab world that are just like the
Washington Post and the New York
Times, i.e., Al-Hayat newspaper.

As an Arab citizen, what is your
dream?

That one day, just like the United States,
we’ll have the United Arab States. Just
imagine what could happen! I think my
generation failed, so it’s now your gener-
ation’s turn to try.

Amid the current situations, do you still
see hope?

If it was easy, we would’ve done it
straight away. I know it’s not easy, but at
least I did my share of the work. It’s now
your turn to do your share and transfer
that to your children and so on. I'm sure
we’ll achieve it one day, but the sooner
the better, of course.
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In the presence of Deputy Minister of Industry and Trade,

Non-resident Ambassador of Sweden and many businessmen

El-Aghil Trade Co., Ltd celebrates

inauguration of New Volvo Car Showroom

eputy Minister of

Industry and Trade

Mr. Ali Ahmad Al-

Sayyaghi inaugurat-

ed last Sunday the
New Showroom for World Volvo
Cars, affiliated with El-Aghil Trade
Group, the sole agent for Volvo auto-
mobiles in Yemen.

During the cheerful ceremony,
attended by His Excellency Non-
Resident Ambassador of the
Kingdom of Sweden Mr. Yan
Thiesliev, a large number of busi-
nessmen and chairmen of trade com-
panies and agencies, Al-Sayyaghi
delivered a speech during which he
stressed the necessity of expanding
the scope of honest competition in
the Yemeni markets, on the basis of
offering top quality and most appro-
priate products, particularly cars and
other transportation means.

According to Deputy Minister of
Industry and Trade, most of the auto-
mobiles entering the Yemeni mar-
kets lack the required standards of
quality and safety, and therefore are
responsible for increasing the num-
ber of traffic accidents that cost the
government and society heavy mate-
rial losses. He also held automobiles
lacking the required quality and
safety standards responsible for the
rising number road accident’s vic-
tims who number up to thousands
per year. “This means several fami-
lies are tragically bereaved and chil-
dren orphaned while mothers
become widows,” he went on to say.

During his speech given at the

ty and safety constitute the topmost
requirement that must be satisfied by
automobile manufacturers in order
to help our society avoid potential
road accidents, as well as ensure a
safe and clean environment in
Yemen.

Concluding his speech, Deputy
Minister of Industry and Trade
wished El-Aghil Trade Co., Ltd fur-
ther success and prosperity in its
business.

On his part, Mr. Abdullah Ahmad
El-Aghil, Honorary Consul of the
Kingdom of Sweden to Yemen and
Deputy Chairman of the Board of
Directors at El-Aghil Trade Group,
reviewed the numerous activities
that have been so far undertaken by
the group since it was established in
the 1960s, mainly in the area of
World Volvo automobiles, which
satisfied all the internationally rec-
ognized standards of quality and
safety. According to him, products of
the Swedish Volvo Company gained
a worldwide reputation, thanks to
their top quality.

“As our group is the sole agent for
Volvo automobiles in Yemen, the
Project Manager of Volvo car show-
room Eng. Hussein Al-Azzani and
his team paid great attention during
arranging for and establishing the
New Volvo Car Showroom to study-
ing how we can offer complete, dis-
tinctive and top quality service with
regard to Volvo car maintenance,
and provide all the parts needed by
Volvo vehicles in all branches of El-
Aghil Trade Co., Ltd based in the

inaugural ceremony of New Volvo
Car Showroom, the Yemeni official
said that Volvo Company is one of
the first automobile manufacturers
that entered Yemen and marketed its
cars in the country. “Volvo vehicles
are famous for their internationally
recognized quality and safety stan-
dards, not only in Yemen but in the
whole world,” Al-Sayyaghi reiterat-
ed.

Al-Sayyaghi continued that quali-

main governorates as well as the
Sana’a-based Headquarters. We also
prepared and trained a specialized
Yemeni staff with a high level of
expertise and technology to be in
charge of providing maintenance for
Volvo cars,” El-Aghil noted.

Facilities and complete services:

El-Aghil added, “As part of our plan
we have been pursuing since the
very beginning of our business, we

have concentrated on the quality of
products we offer to citizens includ-
ing Volvo vehicles, which Yemeni
citizens have been testing since the
1960s, thereby certifying to their
quality. Yemeni citizens also
acknowledged that Volvo vehicles
satisfy all the safety requirements
and are durable and suitable for
Yemen’s harsh topography.”

Mr. Abdullah Ahmad El-Aghil,
Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of
Sweden in Yemen and Deputy
Chairman of the Board of Directors
at El-Aghil Trade Group conveyed
good news to Yemeni citizens who
are willing to get Volvo cars with top
quality. He said that his company
provides several facilities to clients
including sale by installments vial
the different banks, specifically as
the new batch of Volvo vehicles is
considered the most modern and
luxurious in the world of cars.

According to El-Aghil, the new
batch of Volvo vehicles have unlim-
ited specifications and technical
advantages, which is the fruit of ten
years of experience and develop-
ment regarding the advancing tech-
nology and update of Volvo automo-
bile products, be they small cars or
trucks.

Mr. Thomas Erinburge, Regional
Director of Volvo Company gave a
speech at the ceremony in which he

said, “It is my pleasure to welcome
you all at the New Volvo Car
Showroom in Sana’a. I am pleased
to be available in Yemen, the country
of civilization and history. I congrat-
ulate the El-Aghil family for invest-
ing in Volvo automobiles in Yemen.”
He added, “Today, Volvo vehicles
have become linked with all the
means of safety. When people talk
about Volvo cars, they usually talk
about a product, which they know
well and know what the Volvo prod-
ucts available in the market mean.”

A history full of quality:

According to Erinburge, people’s
talk about Volvo products has not
come from vacuum. Instead it is
related with Volvo Company’s com-
mitment to safety criteria in manu-
facturing of Volvo vehicles.
Concluding his speech, Regional
Director of Volvo Company
expressed his gratitude and appreci-
ation to the Yemeni government that
promotes honest competition in its
markets, and provides a variety of
options for Yemeni citizens to
choose the best and safest products
including Volvo vehicles.

Sales and Marketing Manager of
Volvo Car’s Department at El-Aghil
Trade Co., Ltd: Good exhibition
represents a chance for Volvo fans
and adorers

Mr. Mohammed Al-Khayyat,
Head of Automobile Department at
El-Aghil Trade Co., Ltd clarified
that the new generation of Volvo
cars is comprised of numerous mod-
els (Sedan Taxi and Four-Wheel
Drive). Al-Khayyat maintained that
the new showroom is pondered upon
as an opportunity for all Volvo fans
and adorers who want to get ancient
and old vehicles at ease with an
internationally recognized luxury, as
well as Swedish manufacturing
style, famous for its safety-related
advantages. “We promise the public
to bring a variety of other models in
the near future,” he affirmed.

Non-Resident Ambassador of
Sweden praises El-Aghil’s efforts in
strengthening relations between
Yemen and Sweden

His Excellency Mr. Yan Thiesliev,
Non-Resident ~Ambassador  of
Sweden praised the efforts expended
by Mr. Abdullah Ahmad El-Aghil,
Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of
Sweden to Yemen, in strengthening
relations between Yemen and
Sweden. This came in a speech
Thiesliev gave while handing a mer-
itorious award to El-Aghil.

“It is my pleasure to be in the
company of my dear friend the
Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of
Sweden Mr. Abdullah Ahmad El-
Aghil at the time of inaugurating the

New Volvo Car Showroom in
Sana’a, the capital of history and
civilization,” Thiesliev expressed. I
am pleased to give him a modest gift
in recognition of his sincere efforts
in consolidating mutual relations
between Yemen and Sweden. The
El-Aghil’s family played a promi-
nent role in establishing relations
between both states, as well as in
arranging political meetings I had
and will have with His Excellency
Dr. Abu Bakr Al-Qirbi, Yemeni
Minister of Foreign Affairs and other
senior officials in the friendly gov-
ernment of Yemen.”

The Swedish diplomat continued,
“Here I confirm that the Swedish-
Yemeni ties reflect a great possibili-
ty of establishing mutual coopera-
tion, and by this I don’t only mean
economic cooperation that may be
limited to the transfer of technology
and exchange of commodities, prod-
ucts and services, but I talk also
about the strong desire to develop
joint business and work hard for
building permanent partnership. I
also reiterate the strong desire to
construct bridges of mutual under-
standing and an edifice of everlast-
ing friendship between both coun-
tries, of which the positive outcome
become apparent in the various com-
mercial, tourist and educational
areas.

Volvo. for li
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EUROPEAN UNION
DELEGATION OF THE EUROPEAN COMMISSION
TO THE REPUBLIC OF YEMEN

The Delegation of the European Commission to the Republic of Yemen is seeking to
recruit for its offices in Sana'a qualified personnel to fill the position of:

DRIVER

This is a responsible non-supervisory position. Duties include operating and maintaining
transportation vehicles with a focus on safety and efficiency; performing daily pre-trip and
post-trip vehicle inspections; performing minor maintenance tasks on the vehicles when
necessary; fuelling the vehicles; ensuring that periodic scheduled vehicle maintenance is
completed and reported; Responsible for ensuring inside and outside of vehicle are prop-
erly cleaned and fuelled on an ongoing basis. Keeping interior of vehicle neat and orderly.
Documenting usage; preparing trip reports; preparing accident and incident reports as nec-
essary; and providing other services as requested by Chargé d'Affaires a.i.

Qualifications and skills required:-

e Completed secondary education.

*  Proven on-the-job experience of minimum 5 years

*  Good command of English and Arabic (oral and written); knowledge of a 2nd
EU language is considered an advantage

*  Ability to work in a multi-cultural team; ability to work under pressure (meet
deadlines at any cost); high sense of responsibility and initiative.

* Neat and tidy, punctual and ready to work long hours.

Interested candidates are requested to send an application letter together with detailed cur-
riculum vitae to:-

Delegation of the European Commission to the Republic of Yemen

Attn: Mr. Michele Cervone d'Urso, Chargé d'Affaires a.i.

Email: delegation-yemen@ec.europa.eu or fax: 01 440 887

Applications received after 15 June 2008 will not be taken into consideration. Only short
listed candidates will be contacted.

What Will You Do to Make Your Summer
Vacation Productive?

all-new

Teen s
Program TERM SIX
Beginning This Summer ... and - July 23
Confinuing Throughout the He Place

The Exceed “Teen” English Program

- Ages 11 -17

- Sumiier Vacation Term Dates; Jurs 21 — July 22 and July 26 — August 27

- Special Reduction= for: Two Term Registretion = Parent/Child Registration - Siblimgz

- Placement & Reglstration: Nawl iand, Ongolng Dally, Saturday - Thursday)

- Summer Class Times: B:30— 10:30 or 10:50 — 12:50

- Thursdays: Supervised Sports, Games, Vides and Other Activities In English (imd 1o

gll registered Teen students)

Special Term 6 Supplementary Courses:

Exceed Level for Post-Graduate Study

iLecture & Diacuasion and ReadingWriling- based, using original Englizsh
materials to include Movies, Time/Newsweek magazing and Criginal Movels
& Short Stories)

TOEFL iBT Module 2 ITOEFL Spaaking Skills and Indepandant Writing Tasks)
Englieh KeyboardingTyping Skilla

English Debating Skils and other courses |n Foundation Skl s, Listening
Skilla and Communicative Grammar Skilla

O Algicrs Stroct noor 60m Rood
.. Jonod, Republic of Yemen

- Phone: +9467 (1) D37 871/72/3/4/5
Language Center o +9AT (1) 537 874

conlocl @esceedaducalionaong
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of Wisdom

Gentlemen, Yemen does not
need more money! It needs a
system. Yemen need
' accountable officials, and it
needs people with some
decency in the way they work.
If the IMP, World Bank and
other organizations pump
loans into Yemen, where will it
go? More importantly, how will
it be paid?
Prof. Abdulaziz Al-Saqqaf,
(1951 - 1999)
Founder of Yemen Times
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Is Liberalism the way to
reform the Middle East?

ifteen academic researchers, journalists, and

human right activists gathered in Ankara,

Turkey last week to discuss how to promote

free society. The Association for Liberal

Thinking (ALT) who hosted the conference
claims that “liberalism” is the ideology that can best pro-
mote a free society.

The concept of liberalism stresses individual freedom
over societal freedom. According to Turkish intellectuals at
the ALT, that means the guarantee of a free society, in
which individuals should have the abilities, tools and
channels to pursue his or her individual desires inside of
the societal framework.

Liberalism is distinct from socialism, nationalism, and
secularism because individuals’ rights include the right to
religious freedom, which encompasses the right to prac-
tice any religion of the individual’s choice as well as the
freedom to be non-religious. Liberalism also encourages
economic freedom through free trade and open markets.

Freedom of speech and the freedom to partake in polit-
ical activities such as voting and forming political parties
or civil society organizations are also part of this ideology.

Religious freedom, and economic freedom were the
most debatable points at the workshop, and participates
did not hide their fears that such values are not suitable
for application in Middle Eastern countries. Right now, the
region’s citizens are undergoing difficult economic and
social upheavals that are preventing them from compet-
ing in the global marketplace. In addition, most Arab
Muslim countries strongly believe in Islamism, not just as
an ideology but also as rule of law (sharia).

Clearly, Liberalism is an ideal that cannot be practiced
in the short term in the Arab World, where the authorities
control the lifestyle of the individuals. After decades of this
type of rule, individuals themselves begin to accept that it
is the government, sheikhs, or tribes who should take
responsibility for determining their rights.

In Yemen, for example, where religious and tribal
sheikhs have great influence over the population, citizens
do not understand or accept Liberalism with an open
mind. Many people think that such a philosophy will
threaten their way of life, and political authorities are afraid
of having their power revoked through the popularization
of Liberalism. Yemen does not have a free economy,
since most of its business enterprises are in some way
tied to the state. Obstacles such as corruption and a high
unemployment rate prevent the economy from becoming
a free entity with local and international investments flow-
ing in from around the world like so many of the neigh-
boring gulf countries. But with that economic freedom
come social trends and customs from outside — some-
thing that both citizens and politicians in the region fear.

Politicians are likewise quick to accuse Liberalism of
opening the door to extremist parties, whether they are
religious or political. They say that under the Liberalism
umbrella, these extremist parties are able to practice
threatening activities and emphasize their ideologies to
the exclusion others, which will threaten not only individ-
ual freedom and the Liberalism philosophy but society as
a whole. “Protecting the culture and the social aspects of
a society,” was and is still used as an excuse for dictatori-
al governments to dominate their citizens by limiting
human rights and silencing the media.

Some of the participants assumed that Liberalism was
merely the latest approach by which the United States
government will use to gain more influence in the region.
This could be true, as foreign countries have been com-
peting for regional power though the force of their ideolo-
gies, such as Islamism, socialism and nationalism, for
quite some time.

Others participants said that that promoting freedom of
the individual in the changing Arab world is not just a sug-
gestion but a compulsory element of development.
Ideologies — even those with the best intentions — can
harden and become dogmatic, as in Turkey where the
workshop took place, which imposes secularism through-
out the country. Liberalism could be guilty of the same
offenses.

With all these changes, there are many questions still
needing answers. Are Arab Muslims citizens ready to
accept Liberalism? Can Middle Eastern governments
comprehend and employ Liberalism to overcome eco-
nomic, religious, political travails that limit rights and free-
doms? Do regional governments and their citizens label
Liberalism as an unacceptable, Western-only belief inter-
fering with the cultural norms of the Arab Muslim masses?

The answers of these questions can only be found in
the future. But there is no perfect ideology that can ensure
human rights all of the time, in every situation. Each of

us must individually take on
the responsibilities that come Amel Al-Ariqi
Managing Editor

with freedom.

The state is only concerned
about statesmen's issues

By: Ahmad Hussein Tallan

The government gets extremely
engaged in governors’ elections amid
highway robberies, killings and other
forms of crimes. It goes without
saying that each state has its own
components of existence and survival,
and such components include people,
homeland and order, which are
available in our beloved Yemen, but
our state lacks an appropriate political
will to offer multiple services to
people who are unarguably the direct
beneficiaries from law and order.

Regretfully, such didn’t happen
from a practical viewpoint because the
state doesn’t represent will of the
people, nor does it work according to
the social contract under which it was
given the right to rule and manage
affairs of the nation. In Yemen, we
have the kind of state that is extremely
engaged in the issues of statesmen, as
well as what is related with their
affairs under the cover addressing
social issues.

Our state is also extremely busy
improving living conditions of
statesmen, developing plans and
programs and enacting legislations in
line with interests of its members, who
are monopolizing all the resources of
the nation within a narrow scope not
exceeding the limit of ruling General
People’s Congress (GPC).

Real faces, which had been
conserved by the ruling elite for
decades, were unveiled after they ran
out of their cosmetic supplies. Here I
mean that all the faults and
deformities of the regime have
become apparent as the invented
scenes could not cover the regime’s
faults and mistakes.

The ridiculous scenes fabricated by
the failed regime include the recently
conducted gubernatorial elections,
which the ruling party invented to

cover its being unable to manage the
national affairs at the central and local
level. The ruling party amended the
Local Authority Law in line with its
policies that destroy all the
components of law and order.

The GPC surprised us by these
amendments when it added conditions
and regulations that were not placed
into effect under the system of
governor appointments by republican
decrees. In the past, the authority was
controlling the selection process, buy
now nobody knows which criteria the
authority depends on in determining
the qualities of an elected governor.
Seemingly, there is nothing new and
no difference between appointing
governors or electing them as our
government did in the first
gubernatorial vote in the country.

The strangest thing is that the door
was left open during the gubernatorial
nomination process as no firm
requirements or conditions were listed
for candidates to satisfy. This
disclosed numerous faults and frauds
in the miserable electoral process.

In order to clearly contemplate on
the fact, we should have a glance at
the general election and local
authority laws and their conditions
that govern nomination for Parliament
or local councils at the governorate
and district levels. The General
Election Law stipulates that any
government employees willing to
nominate themselves in any local or
parliamentary elections must resign
their current posts. The same also
applies even for simple employees in
order to ensure that candidates can not
use their power to influence or
intimidate voters.

During Yemen’s first governor
elections, all such conditions violated
and were not even considered by
candidates who ran for governor in the
various Yemeni provinces. The legal

violations committed before, during
and after the votes provides the
clearest evidence of the absurdity of
the electoral process that has created a
market for deals and offers to many of
those who made bids to run for
governor in order to withdraw in favor
of ruling party candidates.

Even worse, the local communities
paid no attention to the governor
election that was conducted amid local
crises in most of the Yemeni
governorates. Shortage of diesel in the
local markets hindered public and
private businesses, many governorates
were suffering insecurity and highway
robbery of vehicles was practiced in
several areas. No attention was drawn
to these problems as the authority was
extremely engaged in electing
gOVernors.

At this point, I would like to
highlight a dangerous phenomenon
practiced by the GPC government that
never feels ashamed of committing
frequent violations against the
Constitution and effective laws. It
violated Article 60 of the Election
Law stipulating that "no Parliament or
local council member is allowed to
have another government job in
addition to his/her being Parliament or
local council member."

The legal article, placed in effect,
was violated by the GPC General
Secretariat that nominated four
functioning Parliament members to
run for governor in four governorates
where all of them won. Who may dare
say that this is not a violation of the
just quoted legal article? It is also a
violation of a constitutional article
reading that a Parliament member is
not allowed to have another
government job with the exception of
a cabinet member.

Source: Al-Sahwa .net

Dutch’s wisdom and the need
for international dialogue

By: Jamal Al-Awadhi

ollowing the
announcement to televise
a film produced by the
rightist Parliament
member Van, which the
Arabs and Muslims says insults the
Holy Quran, the government of
Netherlands proved that it is more
wise and able to positively deal with
any potential reactions in the Muslim
communities.
The Arabs and Muslims were
projected to react to the film, based
on the fact that freedom of expression
in the Netherlands or any other part of
the world doesn’t intend to insult
other ideologies and religions.

Many Muslims and Arabs were
satisfied with the Dutch
government’s declaration that it is not
responsible for the film’s content and
its strong denunciation of the film,
which it says calls for violence. This
was also predicted to trigger more
violent reactions by the Islamic
communities in Europe and Muslims
worldwide.

Islam respects all the divine
religions, and throughout the Islamic
history, no Muslim dared to disgrace
the prophets Jesus and Moses or
others revealed in the other three
divine books: the Old Testament,
New Testament and Book of Psalms.

At this point, such events make the
world more violent amid the currently
dire situations, and therefore there is

an urgent need for conducting broad
international dialogues and activating
the role of international
organizations, particularly the ones
having effective slogans such as those
concerned with dialogue between
religions and cultures.

Until now, the businesses practiced
by the various international
organizations worldwide doesn’t
seem to be in line with their slogans
since these organizations remain
silent without reacting to what
happens in the world of today.

The risk of fomenting conflicts
over race and religions has a great
role in the human destructions and
catastrophes the world has been
exposed to throughout the various
stages of history. Such acts may
justify to the simple Muslims what
the extremist Islamists do against the
western interests in the region, which
consequently leads to destabilizing
the region and generating more
extremist youths who favor
extremism in order to protect Islam
from its enemies.

Those who practice such violent
acts and promote violence, extremism
and conflicts between nations are
Fascists who should face fair trials.
Their acts have nothing to do with the
freedom of expression, which we are
struggling to protect and demand that
our government must lift any
restrictions on it.

But, the human freedom doesn’t
mean insulting the ideologies of

others. As Muslims, we don’t want to
hear that Judaism or Christianity is
insulted. Also, we don’t see ourselves
as real Muslims unless we respect
other religions. It is a call for dialogue
and understanding while the right and
the left can only meet at the middle
point where dialogue exists as the
only means for enhancing peace and
harmony among nations.

Jamal Al-Awadhi is Editor-in-Chief
of Yemenonline.info
Source: Yemenonline.info

Yemen’s Unity and UAE Federation:

Failed centralization and
successful federalism

By: Moneer Al-Mawri

uring my brief stay
in the United Arab
Emirates over the
past two weeks, I
met  businessmen
and officials in the federal govern-
ment, as well as in the local author-
ities. I also met educated people in
the Gulf country and found that
most of them, if not all, are closely
observing what is happening in
Yemen with grief and sadness.

More importantly, a state of grief
and sorrow was even noticed
among businessmen who are plan-
ning to invest in a virgin country
like Yemen, but they avoid adven-
turing their capitals due to a lack of
trust in Yemen’s current govern-
ment.

All the Gulf states, not only
UAE, see the Yemeni Reunification
as a fragile unity as the nation may
fragment and split at any time in the
future. They also see the political
leadership in our country as failed
since it proved unable to build nec-
essary basic structures despite 30
years have passed since it first
assumed power.

According to the Gulf states,
Yemen’s political leadership views
investment as one of the forms of
trading that must be lucrative to it
irrespective of its benefits sought
by people. Great portions of popu-
lations in the Gulf states project that
changing Yemen’s system of gover-
nance may help attract huge invest-
ments needed by Yemen and
investors in the various areas.

Yemeni regime impedes invest-
ment:

The Gulf people hold the view that
current system of governance in
Yemen creates numerous obstacles
to their plans aimed at initiating
investment projects in the vulnera-
ble country.

The current regime in Yemen
tries to get closer to the Gulf States
via imitating the negative aspects of
those regimes in terms of bequeath-
ing power to the sons and distribut-
ing wealth and resources to particu-
lar families and groups, but at the
same time depriving the absolute
majority of Yemeni citizens of ben-
efiting from the natural resources in
their homeland. These imitators
don’t understand that the ruling
dynasties in the Gulf did not once
bear any malice against their peo-
ples. Instead, they expend hard
efforts for the sake of their peoples’
happiness and prosperity.

These dynasties, which we
describe in Yemen as ‘nomadic’
managed to exploit returns from oil
and other natural resources in favor
of their peoples by establishing
giant projects and providing all the
basic services such as electricity,

road networks, health and educa-
tion. Except for Saudi Arabia, all
the Gulf states are competing with
the world’s superpowers in the
sense of reached achievements and
services offered for their people.

The Emeriti people, for instance,
enjoy the kind of social liberty
whose influence is superior to that
of the political freedom, which we
are proud of in Yemen. The cities of
Ain, Abu Dhabi and Dubai are top-
ping the list of world cities in terms
of attracting foreign investments to
their territories, thanks to the
nomadic wisdom demonstrated by
rulers in the Gulf state.

The government of UAE
Federation never intervenes in what
is happening in Dubai, Sharija or
Ajman, and any local activities and
projects in each emirate are exclu-
sively handled and utilized by the
emirate itself without any interfer-
ence of the other emirates.

On the other hand, a small proj-
ect in the Yemeni city of Aden may
require a special permission from
Ali Magsa, an official in charge of
Mr. President’s projects, and it is
impossible for anybody to approach
Ali Magsa except via Abdullah Al-
Bashiri, Ali Al-Anisi, Abdu Bourigi
or Aziz Mulif, the close tenure to
President Saleh, who also work in
his office, as administrators, jour-
nalists or top security guards.

We  celebrated the 18th
Anniversary of 22 May central and
fragile unity, which the exiled Ali
Salem Al-Beedh, President of once
People’s Democratic Republic of
Yemen or South Yemen before the
north and south merged in 1990, is
responsible for announcing in such
a fragile structure.

Thanks to the nomadic wisdom
and prudence of the late Sheikh
Zayed Bin Sultan, the Emeriti citi-
zens have understood that central-
ization is the strongest enemy of
unity. Consequently, the late leader
established a successful federation,
which is one of the forms of decen-
tralized unity and this federation
may last for hundreds of years to
come. The Emeriti people are due
to celebrate the 38th Anniversary of
establishing the federation next
December.

Yemeni people are likely to be
plagued by wars and fighting.
Ultimately, they will understand
how vital the late Sheikh Zayed’s
experience is to their unity and then
think about establishing a federal
unity to survive for hundreds of
years in lieu of fragile merging due
to expire on the first day of the
death of its founder President Ali
Abdullah Saleh. Until now, Saleh
left no clear mechanism for his
tenure to share power following his
demise.

Source: Al-Masdar.com
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Press / Op-Ed

Al-Sahwa Weekly,
Mouthpiece of the Islah Party
Thursday, May 29, 2008

Top Stories

e Student unions accuse government
of privatizing government
universities

e Red Cross Society warns against
fomenting violence in Yemen and
other 51 vulnerable countries amid
soaring food prices

e Taiz-based JMP calls for ceasing
bloodshed in Sana’a

e Court prosecutes opposition leaders
for allegedly damaging national
unity

Yemeni court began Wednesday
prosecuting three prominent leaders of
the Yemeni Social Party (YSP) Hassan
Baoum, who is also a member of the
YSP's  political bureau, central
committee member Yehya Ghaleb Al-
Shuaibi and activist Ali Haitham Al-
Ghareeb, on charges of damaging
Yemen's national unity, calling to
secession and inciting deadly unrest in
the south, the weekly reported in its lead
story.

It went on to say that the Secretary-
General of the Nasserite Unionist party
Sultan Al-Atwani said that the trial was
politically-motivated, and in the
meantime recommending that the
authorities should focus on addressing
the state's crises and not to try the
opposition leaders.

On his part, former secretary-general
of YSP Ali Saleh Obad told Al-

Sahwa.net that there are no certain
charges against the defendants.
Mohammad  Al-Mikhlafi, Yemeni
lawyer, said that Yemen's terrible
conditions and government’s poor
policy must be seriously reviewed while
human rights violators should be
prosecuted and not those who have
appropriate demands.

According to the weekly, the three
political activists, arrested in early April,
are being tried in Sana’a over a wave of
protests in southern provinces which
authorities blamed on the YSP, which
was the former ruling party in South
Yemen.

26 September
Weekly, Organ of the Yemeni Army
Thursday, May 29, 2008

Top stories

e Security authorities arrest 11-person
terrorist cell affiliated with Qaeda
organization in Yemen

e Military and security forces drive

rebels off Bani Husheish
e Yemen renews demands for
releasing citizens detained in

Guantanamo
e ESCWA ready to facilitates Yemen’s
entry into GCC

According to the Yemeni Army’s organ,
Executive Secretary of the UN
Economic and Social Commission for
Western Asia (ESCWA) Badr Ali Al-
Dafa expressed ESCWA's readiness to
provide training and orientation to
facilitate Yemen's entry into the Gulf
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Cooperation Council (GCC) in 2015.
The UN official said the ESCWA will
work along with the Yemeni government
to develop the Yemeni legislations and
investment climate in order for Yemen to
be compatible with the GCC states.

He pointed out the ESCWA will work
with all funds, organizations and donor
countries to accelerate implementation
of various development projects in
Yemen so as to help the Yemeni
government achieve the Millennium
Development Goals.

The ESCWA is carrying out special
studies for the water situation in Yemen
where citizens are experiencing severe
shortage in water supplies in order to
help the nation suggest appropriate
solutions to this problem, Al-Dafa said.
He asserted that the 140 representatives
of agencies, funds and institutions of the
United Nations attending the 25th
Round of the Economic and Social
Commission for Western Asia (ESCWA)
being launched in Yemen is a great
indictor of the success.

The round will come out with
significant ~ recommendations  for
strengthening  the  process  of
development in the region and
recommendations will be submitted to
the Conference on Financing for
Development in Doha, Qatar, which will
be held on September 29 to November 2,
2008, Al-Dafa explained.

Al-motamar.net, affiliated with the
General People’s Congress (Ruling
Party)

Wednesday, May 28, 2008

Top Stories
¢ UAE donates 500,000 tons of wheat
to Yemen
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e Three people hurt in Amran’s hand
grenade

e  Women’s quota in elected bodies
referred to Ministry of Labor and
Social Affairs

e Defense Ministry’s source
announces purging of Houthis from
Bani Husheish district

An official source at the Ministry of
Defense announced Tuesday the purging
of Sana’a governorate’s Bani Hushaish
district from elements of terror, sabotage
and insurgency, the website reported in
one of its lead stories. It quoted the
source as saying that armed forces and
security personnel were able to liquidate
all elements of sedition and insurgency
who are outlaws in the district of Bani
Hushaish after these elements have
carried out violation of security and
public peace in addition to attacking
public and private property.

On the other hand, Minister of Interior
Gen. Mutahar Rashad Al-Masri has on
Tuesday called on the criminal elements
of sedition, sabotage and insurgency in
the province of Saada to hasten
surrendering themselves to heads of
local authorities and police departments
and stations in the governorate before it
becomes too late for them to do so.

The minister said those elements are
held fully responsible for whatever
consequences of the rebellion they have
ignited in some districts of Saada and the
crimes and killing they have committed
against the citizens, sheikhs, social
personalities as well as destruction of
public and private property, blocking
roads and displacement of citizens from
their homes and villages.

According to the website, the minister
added these criminal elements who are

dreaming of restoring the rule of the
Imamate have nothing before them now
but the option of surrender. On his part,
the Minister of Defense a affirmed that
the armed forces and security troops, in
cooperation with citizens, will confront
all the terrorist elements planning to
threaten the homeland's stability and
security. “We will toughly deal with
these insurgents and compel them to
surrender and abide by power of the
law,” the Defense Minister was quoted
as saying.

® B Al-Wahdawi.net,
aﬁ'illated with the Nasserite Unionist
Popular Organization (NUPO)
Wednesday, May 28, 2008

Top Stories

* YOHR launches annual report on
human rights and democracy

* Qaeda Organization in Yemen call
on comrades to attack foreign
interests in Yemen

e Sana’a commercial court fines Al-
Arabia Satellite Channel YR 3,000
(equivalent to $15)

* Interior Minister calls on Houthis to
surrender themselves to police
stations

Yemen'’s Interior Minister Gen. Mutahar
Rashad Al-Masri called on Houthi
supporters, entrenching in the Bani
Husheish district of Sana’a governorate,
as well as other armed Houthis
spreading in the various Sa’ada
governorate, to surrender themselves to
nearby police stations and departments

following two weeks of fierce clashes
that left dozens on both sides killed or
injured, the NUPO-affiliated website
reported.

This came after a Defense Ministry’s
source declared that Bani Husheish
district had been purified from Houthi
loyalists, who expressed allegiance with
Houthis’s field leader Abdulmalik Al-
Houthi in his fight with the government
troops. On his part, Abdulmalik Al-
Houthi denied authenticity of stories
published by the official media outlets
that he was killed in a rocket attack by
the government troops in Al-Naqaa area
of Sa’ada governorate over the past two
days.

Al-Houthi said in a recorded tape that
stories published by the government are
inauthentic and baseless, adding that he
is leading his followers’ battles with
army personnel in Sa’ada. “There is no
honor for the authority to claim that it
killed or injured any Yemeni citizen
without committing a sin. Since the
military operations were started, the
authority achieved nothing of its sought-
after objectives, and therefore it is
accused of committing crimes against
humanity,” the Houthis’ fieled leader
was quoted as saying.

According to the website, the latest
outbreak of fighting in the mountainous
province of Saada had erupted in April
last year after a lull in hostilities ensuing
a ceasefire agreement brokered by Qatar
in last June.

The government launched a major
offensive to crush al-Houthi's rebel
group and the Yemeni President Ali
Abdullah Saleh vowed to impose law
and order in the province after a bomb
blast outside a mosque killed 15 people
dead there on May

Political and economic crisis in Yemen: On the

By: Philipp Schweers

emen, which is somewhat

of an "also ran" according

to public opinion and is

either exaggerated as a

violent eastern tribal
country or characterized as the strong-
hold and home of snarling, apocalyptic
terrorists, has recently shifted rather
involuntarily to the forefront on interna-
tional news tickers.

The reason was not only tabloid-style
stories about forced marriages of young
girls of elementary-school age or two-
line items about attacks on foreign resi-
dential complexes. Even the familiar
reports on kidnappings of foreign
tourists were a long time coming up to
now.

The poorest country on the Arabian
peninsula is not only struggling with
economic turmoil, social problems, and
runaway population growth, but increas-
ingly with itself as well.

In addition to bloody hunger protests,
which illustrate the growing difficulties
in the Yemeni system of oil-financed
consumer subsidies, the ever deeper rift
between the two former states also
threatens stability.

The North dominates, the South drifts
away

Since the unification of North and South
Yemen in 1990, and particularly since
the civil war of 1994, the country has
been dominated politically by the north-
ern Yemeni Hashid tribal federation.

Ali Abdullah Saleh, Yemen's president
since the unification and, prior to it, the
president of North Yemen — also a mem-
ber of the Hashid tribe — gradually estab-
lished a power structure based on the
loyalty of his own tribe which systemat-
ically prevents rival tribes from having a
full share of the power.

The tribes of southern Yemen, in par-
ticular, who are notorious for being
extremely proud, do not accept such
political and, often, economic restraints
and have established or reactivated their
own tribal structures.

Even innately optimistic development
workers, such as the German
Development Corporation (GTZ) repre-
sentative in Yemen, Dr. Thomas
Engelhardt, see a great danger as the two
parts of the country drift apart.

Failing State?

This unilateral tribal dominance in
Yemen, which is still influenced by trib-
al identity, and the government's author-

itarian style have led to a continuing
weakening of the central government.

In reality, this situation is prevalent
only in the heartland around the capital
of Sana'a, in the northern Yemeni high-
lands. It is little surprise that this is also
the principal settlement area of the
Hashid and their tribal allies.

In other areas of the country, the cen-
tral government is only present in the
form of roadblocks and military posts at
strategically and commercially impor-
tant locations and is regarded with suspi-
cion by local tribal leaders.

The military forces adopt strange tac-
tics to maintain control over the still-
flowing oil wells and protect the facili-
ties and transport routes. Thus, approxi-
mately 18 hours are needed for a 600-
kilometer cross-country trip on good
roads from Sana'a to the eastern coastal
city of Al Mukalla.

The reason for this is the over 70 road-
blocks and control points along the way,
at which soldiers housed in barracks and
sometimes in Russian armored combat
vehicles inspect every car with extreme
thoroughness.

War Is raging
At the moment, the situation is the most
unstable in the province of Saada,

around two hours north of Sana'a. An
open but quiet war between Houthi
rebels and the Yemeni government has
been raging there since 2004.

These rebels, named after their leader,
Hussein Badr Eddin al-Houthi, who was
killed during fighting in 2004, are adher-
ents of a Shiite Islam in Yemen, where
Sunni Muslims form a majority of the
population.

As a result of the conflicts between
these two currents within Islam, which
have intensified recently, Yemen's Zaidi-
Shiite minority sees itself increasingly
on the defensive.

The rebels are members of the Zaidi
sect, which was previously the ruling
power until the Zaidi Imam was deposed
in 1962 but is virtually powerless today.

Despite intensive Qatari mediation
efforts, which in June 2007 and, most
recently, in February 2008 led to cease-
fire agreements between the rebels and
the government, fighting has broken out
again recently.

After a bombing attack in the provin-
cial capital of Saada in which 16 people
died, including seven government sol-
diers, the two sides are blaming each
other for the renewed escalation.

As ambiguous as the precise goals
may be in this conflict — they range from

speculations about a desire to restore the
Imamate on the Houthi side to a com-
plete expulsion of the Shiites supposed-
ly envisaged by the government
(President Saleh is himself a Shiite) — a
quick and lasting peace agreement is
equally questionable.

One thing is certain, however — this
conflict is having a fragmenting and
seriously destabilizing effect on Yemen.

Economic downturn

In addition to, and intensifying, the
political conflicts within Yemen,
increasingly obvious economic prob-
lems are threatening the country. The
economy, which is dependent on oil
exports, is on the verge of collapse due
to falling production quotas and dwin-
dling reserves. If one believes the esti-
mates of foreign producers, this key
resource will be exhausted within the
next eight years. Investments in leading-
edge sectors have been neglected, and
there is no industrial base.

The optimistically cultivated tourism
trade suffered tremendous losses after a
deadly suicide bombing of Spanish
tourists in summer 2007 and a machine-
gun attack on a tourist convoy in January
2008, in which two Belgian tourists
died.

brink

Yemen's population growth exceeds
that of the economy, and the actual
unemployment rate is over 30 percent.
Combined with the increasingly precari-
ous water shortage, which has developed
into an existential threat, not only for
agriculture, this paints a grim scenario
for the future.

On the verge of collapse?

The two parts of the country are drifting
apart, and tribal and religious conflicts
are growing. The economy and, with it,
the rudimentarily developed social sys-
tem are on the verge of collapse. War is
raging in the north. Even essential basic
needs, such as water supply, are no
longer covered.

In the words of the well-known
Yemen expert, Dr. Robert D. Burrowes
from the University of Washington, if a
decisive stimulus does not come now, a
slide into anarchy, a la Somalia, or civil
war, as in Lebanon, can no longer be
prevented in Yemen.

Philipp Schweers
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By: Michael Broning

ecently, Israel’s Vice Prime

Minister  Shaul Mofaz

offered an unequivocal veto

on a key issue in the Middle

East peace process. Any
return of the Golan Heights to Syria
would result in an “Iranian foothold” on
Israel’s border and would thus not only be
politically naive but irrational.

Mofaz’s statement is symptomatic of a
perception that is now deeply entrenched,
not only in the Middle East, but in the
United States as well. That notion is of a
hegemonic Iran that is attempting to dom-
inate the region through an array of Shiite
proxies. This Iranian fifth column is
believed to stretch from Beirut via
Damascus, Gaza to Baghdad and finally
from Iran to Saudi-Arabia to Yemen.
Recent armed clashes between Hezbollah
and the Lebanese government are, it is
said, just another sign of Iran’s hegemon-
ic reach.

The

Ironically, this perception brings Israel
some rather unlikely partners. President
Hosni Mubarak of Egypt claims that
Shiites are “always loyal to Iran," while
King Abdullah of Jordan has coined the
axiom about a rising “Shiite crescent.”
This “rise of the Shiites” and the resulting
“Sunni/Shia divide” is alleged to be cre-
ating an ever widening chasm in the
region.

Although this perception may con-
vince at first glance, it is ultimately based
on generalizations that reveal more about
its advocates than the actual reality on the
ground. Take Iraq, where the looming
“Shia crescent” is often blamed for much
of the chaos. Recent developments in Iraq
allegedly point to a fundamental clash
between Sunnis and Shiites in the region
and bear witness to malevolent Iranian
interferences. But is Iraq really sympto-
matic of a greater Shia scheme?

True, sectarian tensions between
Sunnis and Shiites in Iraq have escalated
since the fall of Saddam. But contrary to

myth of the Shia crescent

common perception, Iraqi Shiites do not
form a homogenous block that opposes
the supposedly unified Sunnis. Indeed,
the contrary is true. In the light of Iraqi
nationalism that crosses sectarian bound-
aries, it is farfetched to consider the Iraqi
Shia merely proxies of Iran.

Instead, what we are witnessing in Iraq
today is not ever increasing friction
between religious communities but esca-
lating internal power struggles within the
Sunni and Shiite communities. Ongoing
violence in Basra and the fighting
between Sunni “Awakening Councils”
and Al Qaida in Iraq demonstrate this. In
fact, the current escalation points to an
increasing political struggle between the
federalist position of Shia Prime Minister
Nouri Al Maliki and the centralist posi-
tion of Shiite cleric Mogtada al Sadr. This
struggle will ultimately define the politi-
cal structure of Iraq.

Here is where Sunni-Shiite coopera-
tion comes in. Widely unnoticed, Iraqi
Sunni and Shia centralists have managed

in the last couple of months to form a
united parliamentary platform that leaves
sectarian tensions behind. More than a
hundred followers of Ayad Allawi, Al
Sadr, and others have joined their ranks.
This supra-sectarian platform calls for a
central government administration of
Iraq’s natural resources and the postpone-
ment of the looming referendum to settle
the status of the city of Kirkuk.

Change within the government is also
noteworthy. Sunni ministers who had
been boycotting the government since
last year have returned to their posts.
Thus, Iraq is seeing both escalating intra-
sectarian violence and cautious steps
towards inter-sectarian alliances.

And what about Iran? Contrary to the
blame games being played out in the US,
Iran cannot be accused of an unrestrained
aggressive stance toward Iraq. Of course,
no Iranian decision-maker is interested in
a US-success in Iraq that might well put
regime-change in Iran back on the agen-
da. But the rationale behind Iran’s policy

of economic, social and military engage-
ment seems to be first and foremost,
defensive.

Memories of Iraq’s eight year war of
aggression against Iran in the 1980’s have
not faded. From Iran’s perspective, any
future threat originating from Iraq needs
to be averted by ensuring the participa-
tion in Iraq’s government of Shiites and
Kurds.

These complexities are lost on many
observers when matched up against the
convenient and catchy rhetoric of the
“Shia Crescent.” But they have not gone
unnoticed among ordinary Arabs. A
recent poll by the University of Maryland
indicates that a large majority of Arabs in
the region consider Iranian President
Mahmud Ahmadinejad one of the three
most popular political leaders worldwide.
Only 11% identified Iran as the biggest
threat to their security. So if a Shia threat
organized by Iran really does exist, why
is it being ignored by those that it pur-
portedly targets — the Sunni Arab majori-

ties?

Rather than objectively describing the
actual political situation in the Middle
East, the notion of a fundamental Iranian
threat is being used to continue uncondi-
tional Western support for increasingly
unstable regimes. Moreover, the over-
statement of the threat posed by Iran is
also being used as a convenient excuse
for political inflexibility and stagnating
reform processes throughout the region.

But exaggerating the supposed Shia
threat has a price. Continuous talk of a
“Sunni-Shia divide” might ultimately
develop into a self-fulfilling prophecy.
Alarmist rhetoric may, in the end, jeop-
ardize rather than protect the status quo in
the region.

Michael Broning is director of the
Friedrich-Ebert-Foundation (FES) in
Amman, Jordan. FES is a political foun-
dation dffiliated to the Social Democratic
Party of Germany.

Copyright: Project Syndicate, 2008.
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Safer Exploration And Production
Operations Company (SEPOC)

Abdo Salem Mohamed -
(Safety )

Ahmed Hassan Obaid
{Production and Operations )

Abdul-Hakeem Mughlis Alwan
(Production and Operations )

Ali Munis Thabit
(Production and Operations ).
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Abdul-Majid Hassan Al-Jabry
(Supply Chain )

Ali Naji Ahmed
(Drilling )

Abdul-Wahed Abdullah AL-Abedi
{Production and Operations )

Ammar Mohamed Al-Ganad
(Human Resources & Training )

Abdul-Wahid Mansoor Ahmed
(Supply Chain )

Fuad Abdul-Wakeel Abdul-Majeed
(Production and Operations )

sement

Sana'a - Safer Exploration & Production
Operations Company (SEPOC) held a ceremony
and a luncheon to recognize its most distin-
guished employees on the occasion of the World
Labor Day, an event coinciding with the celebra-
tion of the 18th anniversary of the national reuni-

fication day, May 22nd. Held at Movenmpick

Hotel, the ceremony was attended by former
Minister of Oil & Minerals Khaled Mahfoodh
Bahah, Deputy Speaker of Parliament

‘Mohammed Al-Shaddadi, Deputy Minister of Oil
& Minerals Abdul-Malik Alamah, Deputy

Minister of Social Affairs and Labor Ali

Mohammed Ahmed, a number of Parliament and -

Shura Council members, several personalities
and representatives of media outlets.

In the beginning of the recognition celebration,
former Minister of Oil & Minerals pointed out
that the celebration marks the World Labor Day
and is in recognition of SEPOC’s most outstand-
ing employees and officers.

He added, "Life has its successes and failures;
everyone has to decide either to succeed or to

_fail. I mean that all of us in this particular indus-

try want to succeed. Obviously, SEPOC has
achieved great results since it assumed the oper-
ation of Block (18) on Nov 15, 2005 despite the
numerous internal and external challenges. The
company has devoted its efforts to overcome
those challenges in cooperation with certain gov-
ernmental authorities including the Ministry of
Finance, Ministry of Social Affairs & Labor,
Ministry of Civil Service and the Ministry of
Local Governance.”

He went on saying, “After SEPOC took part in
laborious negotiations that defined its relation-
ship with the YLNG Co. over the last three years,
SEPOC nowadays is a producer of the Yemeni
natural gas that will supply Belhaf liquefaction
plant with feedgas through a 300-km pipeline.”

Mr. Bahah also called on the Marib locals to
support SEPOC as they used to support the for-
mer operator. He expressed his confidence that
SEPOC is able to manage many oil-producing
fields in the future. “We trust SEPOC to be able
to mange a large number of oil fields in Marib
and in other places in the future. We all have to
work as hard as possible for the sake of success
and continually making achievements.”

At the end of his speech, Mr. Bahah conclud-
ed," Such kind of recognition of outstanding
SEPOC’s employees will encourage competition
among the company’s workforce. I congratulate
all the awarded employees and encourage others
to do their best to get prizes next year."

On the other hand, SEPOC’s Executive
General Manager Mr. Mohammed Hussein Al-
Haj delivered a keynote address. He welcomed
the attendees. He pinpointed the fact that SEPOC
has a tradition of honoring some outstanding
employees on annual basis although “all employ-
ees deserve awards, given their remarkable and
successful achievements during the last three
years.”

Abdul Rahm

an Abdulla Al-Akwa’a.
Receiving his Special Recognition Award

On the O
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ccasion of the World Labor Day

Mr. Al-Haj admitted that it would take much
time to enumerate the achievements of SEPOC.
He, however, indicated briefly some of them.
“Since I took charge of the Company on Nov 19,
2005, I and the employees encountered many dif-
ficulties and obstacles. We all saw to it that the
Company makes headway.”

Mr. Al-Haj did not forget to thank those who
backed SEPOC right from the beginning. “We
appreciate the support given to the SEPOC
whether from the political leadership or from the
Ministry of Oil & Minerals (MOM). When the
Company assumed operation of Block (18) on
Nov 15, 2005, there were rumors that SEPOC
would collapse after two weeks. However, we all
worked as one team and devoted our efforts to
make SEPOC succeed.” Mr. Al-Haj showed his
gratitude towards President Ali Abdullah Saleh
for his unconditional support, saying that hec is
“the reason behind the Company’s success”.

On the other hand, SEPOC’s EGM indicated
the internal and external challenges the Company
faces, emphasizing the seriousness of the internal
ones. He hoped that, with the support of the polit-
ical leadership and the concerned authorities, the
challenges could be overcome and problems
could be solved.

Mr. Al-Haj added that one of the reasons

Hussien mohamed Al-sanabani
Receiving his Special Achievement Award

behind the success of the Company is the recruit-
ment and appointment of well qualified person-
nel, after taking into consideration the opinion of
the departmental managers concerned and spe-
cialist consultant companies.

“The rule is that an employee is appointed in
the position he/she fits. The Company's perform-
ance, therefore, is high and so is the compensa-
tion of its employees, given the nature of tasks
they perform and risks they encounter.”

Concerning the social development in the local
areas where operations are conducted, Mr. Al-
Haj said, “We are highly keen to serve the local
communities including the areas where the
Marib-Ras Issa Export Pipeline passes. We pro-
vide electricity, drill water wells for adjacent dis-
tricts and do whatever we can do in this regard
but we cannot replace the social development
authoritics.”

He also talked about the Yemen Liquefied
Natural Gas (YLNG) Project which is considered
one of the largest projects in Yemen and is
expected to be a major source of income for the
country. Yet, he explicitly set forth SEPOC’s
main responsibility: to provide the country with
oil from Block (18), a mission that should not be
compromised.

At the end of his speech, Mr. Al-Haj thanked

Munassar Musaed Abdulla
(Production and Operations )

Nabeel Abdo Ali Al-Nuzaili
(Production and Operations)

President Ali Abdullah Saleh and all those who
support SEPOC including the MOM, Ministry of
Finance, Ministry of Civil Service, the
Parliament, etc.

Then, SEPOC’s Exploration & Development
Manager Saif Mohsen Al-Sharif presented a
review of the Company’s achievements during
2007. He said that a number of exploration wells
were drilled in some fields such as Wadi Saba
and Al-Sloob, Western Nogqum, etc. He further
noted that a number of development wells were
spudded as well. Some of the wells drilled are
now producing oil. They are located in different
fields including Alif, Raidan, Asad Al-Kamil,
and Al-Raja. The E&D Department also conduct-
ed studies to evaluate the oil reserves in the
Block.

The Company underwent a recent restructure
with the result that new departments have been
created including the Tender & Contract Dept.
Health, Safety, Security and Environment, and
the Corporate Strategy Office. Many training
programs have been set up for the Company’s
employees both locally and abroad.

On behalf of the General Union of Petroleum,
Minerals & Chemical Workers, Mr. Abdul
‘Wahab al-Woshali delivered a speech expressing
gratitude towards the MOM, SEPOC’s Executive

Hassan Naji Thawaba
Receiving his Special Achievement Award

Manager Mohammed Hussein Al-Haj, and all
employees who stand behind the current progress
and success of the Company. He congratulated
the winners along with all employees on the
World Labor Day.

“The Company and its employees deserve
such recognition and honor,” he said. “We, in the
Union, encourage the Company’s personnel to
pursue their goals.”

Regarding the job evaluation, he expressed his
confidence that SEPOC’s management is able to
solve the relevant problems. Al-Woshali
demanded the MOM to grant the employees the
nature-of-work allowance and improve their con-
ditions. “The oil sector employees should be
taken into consideration because this sector
counts for 80% of the national revenues,” he stat-
ed.

During this special recognition event, SEPOC
recognized some forty two employees who
demonstrated excellent performance throughout
the last year. There were three types of awards
presented:  Outstanding Achievement Award,
Special Achievement Award, and Executive
Manager’s Special Recognition Award. All
Company’s Yemeni nationals can compete for
these awards. Employees were nominated by
departmental managers for the achievement

Ahmed Abdul Twab Ahmed Ghaleb
Receiving his special Achievement Award

awards and selection was made by the Executive
Manager and a special award committee. Some
37 Outstanding Achievement Awards were pre-

_ sented with each recipient receiving a cash bonus

and a certificate recognizing her/his selection.

The Special Achievement Awards were pre-
sented based on the following criteria:
Employee’s contribution to the overall success of
Safer Exploration and Production Operations
Company (SEPOC); leadership ability, initia-
tive/creativity, and dependability/reliability. In
addition to the Outstanding Achievement Award
recipients, four other employees were chosen by
SEPOC’s Executive Manager Eng. Mohammed
Hussein Al-Haj, to receive the Special
Achievement Awards. They are:

1- Hassan Naji Thawaba

2- Hussein Mohammed Al-Sanabani

3- Mahmoud Ahmed Saleh Saeed, and

4- Ahmed Abdul Tawab Saleh Saeed

Then, SEPOC’s Executive Manager presented
his Special Recognition Award. This year’s
recipient was Mr. Abdul-Rahman Abdullah Al-
Akwa’. This award is given to recognize the
employee or officer who best exemplifies the
performance criteria mentioned above. The
recipient was given a special certificate and cash
award recognizing his selection.

Former minister of oil & Minerals

Mr. Mohammed Hussein Al-Haj

Mr. Khaled Mahfoodh Bahah

SEPOC Executive Manager

r. Abdul Wahab al-Woshali
Member of the Labor Union

Mahmoud Ahmed Saleh Saeced

Received his Special
Achievement Award

SEPOC Recognizes Outstanding Employees

Khalid Abdulla M. Al-Suhaibi
(FSO SAFER “Marine” )

Abdo Abdulgeni Saeed
(Pipeline )

==

Lutf Ahmed Mchamed Dallal
(Production and Operations)

Hindia Ahmed
Abdulla(Administration )

Majed Mohamed Al-Qubaty
(Pipeline )

(Production and Operations)

Zayed Ahmed Roban

o

Mansoor Abdulla Rajeh
(Production and Operations )

Jalal Abdulla Al Sanabani
(Exploration & Development )

Majib Abdullah Salman
(Production and Operations)

(Production and Operations )

Salah Mohsin Salah
(FSO SAFER “Marine” )

Saleh Saleh Hamood Al-Nkat
(Supply Chain )

f

\

Salim Mohamed Asker Ayedh
(Production and Operations

Sanad Faisel Abdul Al-Aghbari
(Finance )

Waddah Mohamed Numan
(Safety)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR
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Below are figuree alistrscted from the 2007 Budited Finsncigl Ligts compared with
the Finanpial Lists of the previous three years:
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Net assets | 17.465.384 | 27.881.313 | 55.583.152 [125.866.950
Net deposits [ 13,448,464 [29.673.315 | 28,426,388 [117.113.434
Net advances and lgans | 5.570.978 15,358,776 |43.586.124
Krd rszeh and rsh equaalents | 10,615.7HS F2.090.049 | 63214585
Net liabilitias 5,073,568 | GB.452.092
Net praofit 13.419 S12.788 | 1.27.823
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Such indicators are witness for the dishinguizhed perfarmance and |::ln'||nu:-|' progress
realized by the Bank.

13.818.103
12,524,085
4.090.9%8 | 2581012

Dn the cther hand, the bank has comdinued ta realize advanced imgrovemenis in e
grality of s variees basking preduots and servioes, besides adopling instiuticsal
banking pelicias,

During 3807 the Bank has expanded its inter-brasoh netwerk — sanncated {on linz) 1o the
Il‘llr"I cpfe-Dankiez In the Hesd 0 | On 1he 25

sddifional =ix new branches wers {o serse remote are the caunbri

ETMs and 1185 paint of sales [P rk servioe are also supplicd to th

glactrenl: banking s aisEatlal gufiets te tha Bank alming ©
requirements of its cliens 2y wher= and any fime countrywede. It is noka

that the new clzatraaio pradunts
Clleate are now wall prizated fo ugs GAG Baok Smas1 Gards, Haraln i 18 warthy 1o nantian
that ihe Bank =njoys the privilegs of isswing direclly the visa cands locally.

Tralnlngz:
Ell achisvemunis oblginad togeiher with the saricue banking grodests |lsunched in 2007
pauld not be dome withost the intensive care given 1o the human resourses wha ane
cansldersd tha Backions t2 Ma ba siFy. Tha kank cardad cut 2 nember ol
eatomsing draining courses sad illes
gaalify and impreve the employees ski
standards. Such programs wera hald In tha m|.1 tamows banking Institutlons an:
The rambar of candsdabee joined such programs wars 1163 unpl:r_w-r. coinzided fo Eha
evcluticaary programes plammed by the Bank 1o develap, update and wholly up-rise with ifs
tanklng actvitlas. Tha Baink launzhed a pregran zalled “Devaloping and Madereling rha
gasifion fhe Bank up ta tae loval of the regional backe. The shralagy of B
o improve and updaie its: polisies and progedueres. the orzanizational char
md In geniral ta Implemens a tatal re-structuring gro
ivursal bank conmeclad with & comprahersive and contizuns fr:

Tewards this and tha Highar Tander Commltes has passed Ms approval ta fha prajact
which iz sedrusted 1o 8 Joird Yerdurs Gonsultant Gomgany and fhe implemantation of the
same is now enderway.

CAG Bank which i dealing with dilferant sachire of peopls is considered the Frst peblic
kank (the Bank af the Pecgle) by virlue of its spread 408 brasahes, the 50 ATMs besides a
bly ramber = FA%s, tha bank c2%alned sevaral owllats te pravide sarvzas fo the pablle.
The Besk wae also faking the privilegs fo present iself by parhisipabing and spoasoring
coancmioal, ssaial; sparts aotivitics and ather papular cvents.

|:I-.1'r.||:1:|mr.rr| zrojects and enhanoc investment sertors relased ta the narllnal oo
K& well, 1he Bank Eargals intlade reducing of anemghaysanl ani o
caportanifies far the youlh s=char and fo carry oul the radionaliced policies of e
povermmend in all related fickds.

Finally, in my fadie and oo Behalf of my colleagues, Board of Direchars and GAG Bank
siaff, | would like fo extend my profound thanks and gratitude fo the President, &li
Abdullsh Saleh fer his wise polley and snllghtsaing dlroctiens which reprssent the
salid bese and securily valve for all the achievemenls, prosperity and progress
cnjoyed by aur Gouniry and the people. | would Kike also 1o fake this epportenity fo
gxtend our thanks and agpeeciztien to HLE. Dr & Mohammed Molawar the Frima
Hinister, Or Manser Al Hawshabi; Minister of Agrisulfure and

lerigatian, Or Keman Tahar Al-Sohibi, Minister of Financs ,

Mr AbdulQadsr Hilal, Minater of Local Adminletration and

all Govern=ent Figure wha strongly supparted the Bank,

Qur thanks are also extended o Mr. Ahmsd Abdurrahman

Al-Samawl, the Gevernor of Gentral Bank of Yemen and fo

Or &bdullah Ebdullah & Sanafi, Bead of COCE for their sincore

cooparallam and efforte mada 1o Improve the banking aacior

thrawgh regulations and contral levels.

CGhalemen of the Board of Dractora

give its fruits as over one hendred and fifty thoasaed
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INODEPEMOENT AULDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREROLDERS

0N THE COOPERATIVE AMD AGRICULTURAL CREDIT BANK

Report on the Financlal Statemsnts
W= hawe audited the accompanying financial stabemants of tha Cooperative and Agricultural

- Credit Bank {The Bank) which comprises the balance sheet as of 31 December 2007, the

related Income ststement, stafements of changes In equity and cash flows for the year then
anded, and a summary of significant accounting palicias and athar seplanatary notas,
Managernents Responsiilily far e Financsl Stalemerls

Manapement |5 responsible for the preparstion and falr presantation of these financial
siatemants in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporiing Standands and melated
Yemmseni [aws and regulalions. This respoesibilily includes designing, imglementing and
maintaining internal comtral relevant to the preparation and falr presentation of financial
statemants that are fres from material misstatement, whether dus: o fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriste accounting policies: and making accounking eatimates that are
reasonabls i the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsahility

Owr reaporsibliity s to expreas an opinlon on these financlal ststements bagsed on our
audit. Wa conducied our audit in accordancs with International S2andards on Auditing and
reladed Yomeni laws and regulations. Those standards roquine thad we comply with cthical
reqquirements and plan and pertanm the sudlt to obtsin reasonable sgsurance whether the
financial statemsnts are fras from matanial misstatemant.

An awdit invohees pedorming proosdures fo abfain audi evidence shout the amounds ard
disclosures In the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the sudior's
judgment, including the assassment of tha risks of matasal mésstatement of the financial
slabements, whelher dse Lo fraud or erar In making those ke assessments, e sudior
canshders Intemial control relevant to the benk’s preparstion and falr presentation of the
financial statements in ondar o design auwdit procedures that are approgriate in circemstances,
bul noll Bor Bie purpose of expressing & opimion o e elfeclivensss of e Bank's inlermal
contral. An audt aleo includes evaluating the appropritensss of accounting policles used
and the reasonableness of accounting esfimates mada by managemant, a5 well 25 evaluabing
the orrerall presentation of the financial statements.

‘Wi belizwa that the audit evidenca we have cbiainad is sufficient and appropriate to provide
2 basis for pur auds cpinion.

Opidnlcn

In our opinien, the accompanying financial statemants present fairly in all matarial
respects, the financial position of the Cooperative Agriculfural Credit Bank as = 31
December 2007, and of Its financlal pertcrmance, the changes In egquity and 55 cash flows
for the yaar then endsd in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and
refaded Yemeni ws and regulations.

Repart on other Legal and Regulatary Requiremsnts.

W hawe olrimined all the infonmation and explanations which we required for tha purposs of
aur 3udit. We also confinm that, in aur apinsan, prope socaurling records have been kepl
by the Bank and the accompanying financial statements are in agresment therewith.
According to our knowlsdge and belisf mo material violations to the provisions of the
Banks Law na. 38 of 1998, Coaperalive Agriculbural Credil Bard Law no. 39 al 1982 or guidelines
of Central Bank of 'I’unan hava occurrad during the year ending 31 Dacember 2007

|.-\_-\.-\.-\.\_
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EA[ANCE SHEET AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2007

D 31 DECEMBER 2007

INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
2T 2
Mok TH D00 TR g
DPERATING INCOME
nkerest on oans and advances fo custoners and due from banks H 4207 135 21734
Inicrest on cerificaies of deposi with the Contral Eank of Yomen 1.45E 355 B HE
kil 2di Iraauny bilks Z 155,374 BE4.BTE
Inlnraal on yowsrsmen| boniks TR ITH SIT. 25
Total indzrest income E 45184 1,554,549
Gost of deposis 2 1 7,
Ml ilarcl mnosime AT 2,767 A0
(Cnimmiia s s e i i1 Evaikt g it 1.30E37 EIRA3E
|l } Qi it Toreign cormaey inaieaciing 4 31,325) ZIEEIT
Gl 5 /300 E0,080
Diibwar cgmrnifing inceime I 138,795 £ 04
MET GPERATMG INCOME B B1E, 4012541
CPERATING EXPENSES
Ganeral ared mimmisiralion scpsmss i 4 5T 188 3954 157
Proviginns ] A5 S5 52
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENTES 50 ETT 4 TH
[PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE ZAKAT 1,296,623 Lre ke
Fakal il [13300) | 10,080
FROFT FOR THE TEAR AFTER ZAKAT 1,ZTEE22 G512 T58
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1.3TEE2T S12.T5E
Bask camisgs por shane ] TR 214 G5 TR 10468

The aRachod nodcs 1 ba41 form an imcgral part of these inascial stairmenis.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Stadery  General  Poeofit for

Capial Reserve Remeryz the Year Toizl

TR TR TR0 TR0 YR
Baknoe at 11 Docemiber 20065 Liery | &858 13 13819 453112
Pralit dar the yesr - - - SI2TEE SI2T=E
Traralar In slslslony reesnm TaE . [FESE3) -
Transiar to genaral reserve . . TS [PESET) -
Transier b capial 15259 . (3 55| .
Dowsrn pral divigiand 5 [ N FL e ]
Habwize at 31 Deunbar 2008 4ETETH 1AM T B - ST 56
Transter from genesal resove ot . 24,230 - -
L3zl pai In oy Agricstenzl Promeidan Fond 11,00 . . . 1MLERD
Reslaled haknzs s sl 1 Joruary 207 SH0MM 1ES 54 06 - 51a6
Praht dar the year . . . 1IMAEE 1 mMEn
Translar b statwtoy reseve 19,41 . (151,833 .
Transkar fo genard| eseve . . 1520 (1520 -
T ke fredn profil Fsd B yoad anvd amcral rebarve b capital 1.000,338 ' |105,099] (B BRE| L
Eevcmmrat dividend - - - - -
Balance 3t 31 Decernber 2007 MO 210535 141558 A5 i

‘

In complianc with S resolution of Central Bank of Yomen . 12 for 2004 dxted & Decomber 2004 and based
upen Bic approval of the Bank's Board of Dkzctor's resolution in fs mosting Boid on 23 Aped 2807 and Se
approwval of Minkstny of Firancs daied 3 March 2007 1w resctved 1o Incraasa i capital of ths Bamk o of T
il fer the wear J0E snd subdaguen] years, winlil 1ha capital rapches ¥R 6000000 Theisands, BN ha
tran=far of the resideal bakance remaining from the profil for the pear 2006 afisr the irarfer io sistubory and
genesal resappex and the proposed dividend payable to shareholders 10 share capital the share capital
reached as of 11 December 2008 4,575,770 thousands.

Tha Egard of Directars resoivad In RBs macting held on 23 Jaruary 2008 % ransher YA 24,230 thousands from
general msanss fo tha pald share caplal b becoma YA 5000 millian corspricing of 5000 thousands shas of
gl wglisa YR 1000 each. Thoa Boend of Dinsclors an seschea] fo increess Tha abaes cagital Do YR jen Bilien
and i increszs the mominal valus of e share meamvhile ixng number of e shares. The Boand of Direcion: will
implement this incrza=e in the capical during ©e coming period from S curem resenes o those which will be
formed from futun: profits withot comtradicting the nules and reguiations of the Ceniral Bank of Yemen inthis rogard.
Tra Board of Oirechors resolved In Hs mecting held on 25 March 286 &0 Increase the share capital 1o YR
EO0D,D0Y Shaiks enits by B ranshr of YR 105,000 thomsands from gemarsd resenis snd i halanza of Bea profi
Tiar Wy s allr Irarslerring |0 alslulony ressovs and genees] rmsres T s yasr b e shers cagilsl, meking
number of isseed gharss 6,00 thousands of nomiml vake YR 1,000 psr share,

&= <hown in note 13 the Bank did not reealue properties it owns in accordance with the provisions of stermational
Actounhing Sandaed no 16 Hod the Bank done so. the cquiy would hawe increased by TR 1,830,562 thowsands
b VR 7 933 373 thoeusands [3036- YR B, 554,550 iousands | and tha Lair valus of sach shan woeld hove boen TR
1,537 2006 ¥R 1,311 chana).

Thes allsbed polas 1 ko 1 Fform an inksgrel garl of Uses Rancisl alslomenls

imarnall d abrzad aiming ha " ol
PE ImArmaily and abread aiming fnar 2005
et i e [ FURRRE AN STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007
canmhars. =K SR
Cas=h on Band and resenve balances with the Central Bank of Yemes & b Ji ] THIT DM | CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTNITES TR ¥R (50
Diisa Fresm hanke B 16,650 754 ATTLE Iv‘rliﬂhrth]rulrbﬂunhl.ﬂlll 1EEEE £ T30
Ackedrrmnit for
Trzasury bills, nct T 0,57 230 TELIN | priteinn dar basses on kaass and — Y madedarngthe gy B30TON s
Cerilicales ol daposil with e Canlral Bank of Yamen B A R0 000 A.T50.080 Predalon for lapae o7 leans wrd schanzan and carn artimn 2k i1 b e bl 1 -
CaerTIme AE0 BEE Armawink stk durisgfee prarfom provieken 4o ineeeas oo inone asd acesscre. - (EE1]
HE . £ e . Iz from asla of phant end L ESE| [ in]]
Losne and mbvenis b cuslomens, nel of provision L 43380104 15618 | z2aka poid 110,800 180 0800
Ewallabic for sale nvestments, net 1 53 050 57,000 Depresiadion of property, pland and squipment 30,188 Fin e
Debi babnces mnd other azwsts v 173214 23,262 P vp e el o o w1 et wn el alahl A i T2, 140G 1,264,584
Progerty, plant and equipreat, net of accumutatod dapreciation 13 2,377 3ET AUTEEITS | CHANGES M EAMKNG ABSETS AMD LIABILITER
[Insreasc) n rescre: balances with e Cantral Bank of Yemes FTIAEEE  BITRIE
TOTAL ASSETS 120 BEE, 550 F6.0E3, 162 v hilla 5 e {Erea monthe, r-tururmnrrn-d tharrash 15080 RO
i pem—— P rabz A aHar (28 535,208} 990,75
Lzl [z v o Liwbd b bncas e of b seosis (E2 A1) &7 201
LIABLITIES Nk [Jncrecwss] In vt (7} (ELITLIEY 7 SAEEET)
Dus 4= hanks “ 10,736 22451
- . Deomaes) ) NGEass I due i basks T, az AR
) Cusstomers' deposits B LA BRI | e oo ety S el
el il busbaracen el oifer liabiifis ] 1,557 48 15731 | 30k i ot bk aind wthen liabilites. [E ] 300,567
§ Cther provisions T 528515 3.5 bles o i Bl ) BAGMAN  ITEM A
e e CASH FLOWS [USED i) INVESTMENT ACTVITES
TOTAL LIABILITIEES 445 S 51856 | Parchase of proporty, plast and equipmes T2} [14. |
e el Fina nhpn:mmmuhrrm [t ard eipment 1148 1iaii
EQUITY I for asks 2 Dl -
Capital 5 £,500 300 43750 Mol o Ao [urerd in) irnsaefing artieiian ({1 Lo vl L H [P 04
CASH FLOMS FROM | JUSED K] FINRARCING HETVINES
Brsorecs ] a3231 197,70 S e i e
Inercas i the caplal 10,04
TOTAL EQUITY AL SATSSHE | hemenmeopd : -
TOTAL LAGAITICR AND EXY Lot 5 1R Het oo Aos trom fesed i) Paancing acibies (% 109,00 1534, 53]
CONTRA ACCOUNTS AND OTHER COMMTNENTE, NET o ST M1 AL A T T R AT e LIRL
Cash ad casl cyulvakeats ot 1 Jaauary LW 12124085
Independent Seditors’ regort atached dpage 1) Cunh wredl = b wridend al 3 Decnl G1ZH4585 1236008
HEeprassried by
= ?é"’" et ‘""’_“_'iﬂ'-l"}“"m poEroEeT Cash oo hiad andlpesere Balancos Wil e Cormbial Bank of Yomen Zo4pss  TEEAR
A T [ from banks 18 552 3 4,773,086
/, = - o Iraaury bals WA TR
e 1 s ) L Carearrursan] biovaks 4 AED,EEG 4,450 386
e B s h Dbty ot e Juwalyae . Gerticaie of depostt with Geniral Bk of Yemen 1,330,000 1738080
¥ ""I::‘ .--:.-\-:-_"|:|-_:.- i __,.-‘" - T - Hpaproa hoviancan weth fse Casiral Dank nf Tamas (4 E13 088,  (SOTEOLE)
el o I e =l - B Tramsery bils rssturmg sl U rmonis, el of sremoriesd decounl 36,330 [-E R
, - # A % e [—— . ELIMARE 32300040
- e r
Haizdh Fakhi Maa'yad| - - « The atached notes 4 bo &1 barm an integral part o Sicse Heanchal stoements. -
n ¥
web site:www.cacbank.com.ye Capiraivs & Agriculural o Bank QNPT NVIRET
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HERTRAD 1 : i =
FINANCIAL STATE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

- RISK MANAGEMEMNT OF FINAMCIAL INSTRELMENTS [CONTINLED)

Ligidity risk jcontinecd)

Inlarest raby risk

Imerest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interzst rates will affect the future
rash fiows or tha walug of thi Binanclal Instrumants. Tha Bank parforms & numisr of proceouras
Lo limi the elfecl ol such rizh lo the msimum level by:

- corrciating imterest rabes oo Escaoning with mEcrest raies on loending;

- ofeidaring s disseunt rates for diffarant curancias wian detemmining isteresh rafes;

- pomtrodling the matching of maturity dates of financial assetx and lizkilities.

Thi tabla hedow shows the Bank's cxposen 1o Inenest raie nsks:

Feena B
ool il ) Lemathen Fromim  montain Ower  MomInforost
Imontks & monte 1 year 1 Sifelthi Tolal
NESETS =¥ IREum AL JETH IR =
L o huad asd rewares lulinoes
wilh e Conviral B of Yersan T 61 AR - - L OE T N 0SS
Dz from banks 7,074, 36 = e BITT.IEE  iGERA
Cartifesies ol deprrail wilh Canieal
Banh of Yersn o4 A0, B - - . - A Fi Bl
Trezsury bk, net 30 565,921 - . - 157 =0
Gosmmrend bonds - - - A 460355 4 4600 355
Fealaak dar sale lmvestmarts, net . E5,03 LGl
Lemars i schaanca locniliman,
ael of privizion HMETEE AW 20146 E43 iT2 - RN
Dok Balanoes and obhwr asscis . - . . 178 173
Prigeily planl and ayeizeants - - - SITTOET  ISTTAAD
Tl memnte VRS AR RANCTE  SIGLEE 30 IERIE) 135S
LIRSILITIES AKD BT
Duefa baaks 10,705 LI
Caslonisny’ dugosils 10538 TE 11,7040 - . 5351 1T A
recHl bdances and other it . - . . LMIFS 20T
Lok fmi kans - - - 4JELE 101 0LL 143,305
Equity = = = = BRI e
Totzl kabdimes and oquity 1 H " i Lrdie) L B 3N
e ol weri iy gap (SRS BEMGEN  REMLME  S0EN TRATONN
= et wedp gap (22 B (2RI 215631 50 184M 255
Fram§ Mo
IR R Lessthan Fesalta mondols  Owe okl
Imenite Gmentte  1paar Tyeer  Smsbve ol
K33ETS ol LU U 4 S O 14/ O .1
Gl on hand and resene alences with T
P N — 41T - - - 10T TR
Dg= from banks ST = . - Er: R
wummwma a7 i ) ) 475
Trezsory Bk, nct 158,15 ES 3N ' TR o
Gowemmenk bonds - . e . A AEL T
Foewbabie for sale Irvestmarts, net - - . - ETH L T
L andl afwaces W amlome, et of prossioe. 9 EEENE  SIRIQNS  1EDAR2 4.7 - 1535 78
Dl bealennse and ofhar seesks - - . - B HE
Pragaity pladl anl sguipresals - - . - ATEITS LTEEITS
Tolal zescis IGAMAET S DES D43 S4EEESE 10,0143 55591951
LIREILITEES AMD EQUITY
D By bsanies B2 dat - . - - B2 44t
‘Casiomers’ Soposis 9033 TIEEISH . - - 449G 132
{ragr belarces and afser inbddes - . ! - AT R
Long term loans - - . 2 MM 42
Emity - - : - AU WL
Tolal Rakdil e aidl aqeity THER TIEEISE . 3N T T SRR M
It e sewelinity 3 2802 [LMHENT) 4R LATTESD 060000 -
Canalitiva inieristraln sorcallvity gap S350 [FE3DE) (TASLEST) [IBEdfEd] - .

In additicn to the abowe mentioned note ne. 33 shows the 2verage interest rates on 2sscis and
llahlitles applisd during e yaars emdad 31 Dacambsr 2107 and 31 Decambsr 2306

Exchange reie rimk

Due bo Ehe nalurs of B Bank's activiEks, tho Bank deals In diterent foralgn ommemsles; kance IE
je sapomed o eachange rale sk, The Bank sliees Lo aminlain & belanced Greign curencios
positions in compliance with the Central Bank of Yemen instrections. and the requircments of the
Cemiral Bank of Yamenm clrcular no. & of 1938 which spac®les that individual faralgn currancy
posilions =hall nol expeed 15% of the Bank's capilel and res=ries, snd thel the sggregals open
position ter all curcncies skall not excoed 25% of tse Bank's capital and reserees. In ordor b
conply with the Cenbral Bank of Yaman circular no, 6 of 1993, e Bank regularly maniiors s
foreign ommency positions and sells the excess funds in foreign currencies to the Central Bank
of Yamen at B provalling rates on the daka of sala.

The zignilicen! Freign currsncy poeailions of the Bank ams shown im nele ne. 5.

The Bank bad the following significant et cxposures o fordgn curencics:

ENTS FOR THE YEAR

4 RISK MANAGEMERT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUELD)

Capital management

Thaz Eank complied whh 21l the axternaly mposod caplal raquiremants boowhich Bey are subject.
The capilsl edequecy v calculated g [llowes:

D 31 DECENBER 201

Gross noe-poriorming koares and adeancess 2t H Degembor 28T amoenied YR 5180422 foosasds
(51 Dwcwmber 3808: YR 311745 thosssnda|. The braskup of the sbov smounl e s kolios:

i ' A “I:BIIT - M Doeinbier 3005
el ar 200e
YR millgnsg FEmilllang BN ==
Tier 1 cagital Fuhrtaerad debbe 155051 s
Capital 6000 4 Dezelstil dubis 47 2S5 1N
R::"ﬁ " = iﬁi B debhs 238053 2075563
r Iﬂlﬂll’.‘t’.ll}' G52 5074 Tatalg ez i ks rs and sk 5188 &1 5117438
10 LOAKS AMD ADVKHCES TO CUSTOMERS, MET OF PROMIRION
Ganaral provisson Dalance &2 al year and B2 3TE 10t Proia i ot uracas e Jurrs wed ik
lirvestmenil in sy lucal banks or finanial coompaies {58 LTl I mcrrrdhancm with Ariichs B5 of tha Boankss L . 36 il 19688, which s e ffact o 27 Buacaabar, B8, ind
Total qualifying capital T2 5,348 Arick 5 af the Income Tax Law ng. M of #331 25 amenéed by Regublican Decres Law ne. 12 of 1999, any
Rigk walgilad assats pezsizian for losses on loans and advances made by 3 hank n compliance with the reguistions of the Central Bask
O balanece <hesi 25408 14,034 ul Yermen in lhid raa peact, are mud subjeci o tha prressons of say mecoms e s s g sllowsbie o s deduclion
(¥F balance sheet 6475 16,253 I arrivineg o thic ixeable Income. This ks nobapplicalb: 25 @ Bank & excropaed from incoems: 2.
Torlal rigk - walghted aaeels 51,555 N GE Dty A it | p ! i Ry ] b e e . Elcrems .
) ) Pruremion lor sgecullues losm 3 Derornies AT e M DAt I
Capital adequacy ration - _— .
P Y
Total capital LEL b 176 Enmﬂm" "-‘m"“ . am":':“': e A
5- CASH ON HAND AND RESERVE BALAMCES WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF YEMEM Bolance 2 1 kmuwy e e ’
31 . 1D . Frorended ke tha ysar inels 28] 1508 1508 - 2ATT T4
e Pl ] Forlance o 11 Macanzer (] FIE] Ay AT
2k on hand: Pt
. Tesme fon alam bosim and sdusnoe | prrTen) 1 17 Chacamber S50E-
In loal camency 4,120, 094 13372 murh 5 e Tkl : L Toad
In fureiga cumencles 3ATS 1,584 THEN YPCTOE e YD WM YT
Tkl 2ash 20 hand 7.20.005 TAEME | Eliinea a1 arusary ARSHEE 11,881 IKEXE 1 EULDEE B jumd
Rr=enve balancos with the Gontral Bznk of Yemon: Proveriad dar e e neis ) 51, 144,503 E48.411 =117 ELEFE] N
Ini loal camency 7981702 4136357
In Mg cumtencies EAd1 193 B e Whsitlin boch darisg U yoar jeod 38) (3020 = [ e ST = - -
Ao uiiitzed dering the I}
Tokal ressarvs bedencen with e Coatral Bank of Yemes 14 502 960 ST o g e yeor i M3
Eaterica = 11 Dacanizer LA FMEM JEWMTRI iESACE [T 7388703
Total cash on bearad ansd resenve balances with the Cemiral Bank of Temen EE:& ?I'EILTII:IH
; . . ) ., A rosg LT et G0 provide for fhe g P for park lroans snd atingenzee nchding
In accordamce with the Yemeni Banks Law no. 38 of 1990 the Bank is required fo saistain statutony otk s a1t et o L Co 0
dapnsis with tha Central Eank of Yemean a1 10% on kel carmancy anid 210 % on Soraign carmancliees, of ' .
ity demand, lime and cther depoaits. The rete of inkzresl moome iz delermined by the Central Bank | 1008 rrerasl

of fomen rom bme totime. The rescrec balances inlocal cumency camy an ciiechive inboncst ratc ot
A3 (A0 13 %) and the hedanceas in foralqn Cunmancy ans - intarast bearing depoais,

Thir repeesents imiasest oa nen-perioiming kaans and advasces in accosdance with te Cemiral Bank of Yemes
regulations: and which is racognissd 35 resasus only whes colieched.

#- UE FROM BANKS 4 December 91 December M December 3 December
- FA
Oum from e Sanirsd Bank of Yamen and athar incal hamks YR-D0 YR
: Exfencs af 1 damuiary TI7 58 £29,784
Currenl sciounts wilh the Cendral Bank of Yesen: p g gt yaar 241} 56.3)
In In-:a.l curmncy 37045954 3,250 34 Suspended Suring e year 1,074 55 3
In foreign currencies E46. 751 aE5,174 ST T S
Tadal due o he Cailral Bank of Yemes £461. 115 3,762 - :
Curant account halances with kecal Banks 2ATT 2% 11- AVAILAELE FOR S4LE INVESTMENTE, NET
Total due from Bve Ceniral Bank of Yeman and oier local banks #463202 3,729,138  |Thees=erprn mrvasimaents, selebls for sl in the foil prsies: e firramcinl insidistion;
31 Dexember H Decenaber
Due from forcign banks and other francizd institutinns m_éﬂ rﬁh
Current and damand account balances WSHS0E  REIE0 | e it sompany:
Time deposits T T4 668 1,811,240 Mareh Poutry Company jsote 11-2) i Tad RTT
Tesal dus from foraign banks and other fmanclal insteutions. 1218072 544770 |4 in ofser comy
Temen Firencial Sorvices Gompany - Temen (oot 11-0] LI LT
Total dwe from banks T55E36  GTTIN08 | yoon Company for me Manstactung of Pumps 15750 1579
Cumand gecoiils g e deasita with Toreign hanks camy van sk indenast eeles whila cimand eecoiinks femen Gompany for Warketng Agncabural Froducs 1,350 1,350
with the Central Bank of Yemen and lecal banles dio mot carry any interest. Temen Hotols Compary i 50
[estres Factany o Al Tali 113 114
T-TREASURY BILLS, NET Yemen Drizh Compary for investeent k-] Lri3
n D'::;_I,""h“ 3'[':‘,'[""52""" Tosal Teziabie far sy eestmens 15,361 167300
020 YROM | pyiinn fer e 1 110,303 A1
Trwesvmmy il chos s Bl ey 0,800,000 Taogpy | ter s fuata 11 Lrin ey .
Traasury bils dug within £81 days 104,630 30343 Met ook vialee of Jealizbic dor Sk Imecsincnis L LED T
Tokal treasury bills ,004.500 TIEEEAD | 440 Mharsh Cear
Unamortized decount dus within 2 days T 400 (142 B840}
The Eanis owns 23.20% of the share capltzl of the March Foultry Gamparry. The company 120es sewesl proiems bl
R e A T S T E S ER030 | papected o oondnee and pet ssislizzd in the Sntars. Heserhcless ol Imgelment provision was tiee B the
Mt ook value of treasery bils 30,197.280 7,540,591 [ oeciing invale of inwsament in the company.

In acrordamch with Tha Instruciens of tha Cenabral Eank of Yeman, trearury bils widch matura within
a period not exceeding thres montfes =e considered as part of cash and cash equialent msety,

3- CERTIFICATES OF DEFOQZIT WITH THE CENTRAL BAKK OF YEMEN

F Dezember 3 Decamisr
2007 G
¥R ¥R
Carfficabas of dapask - 01 days & 306,200 £, 750,006

11-b Yermen Frencl Ssrvicas Company - Yamen

The Eank has conlrizuted 2 sern of S0 3907 thousands to the capial of Yemen Francll Services Comzany
[Cheead Yemeal Shascholding Company), ‘which had boon estabished in joing veriue s 2 rumBer of ofer kal
banks. The share Capiialof the company & UED 3000000, The Bank haes during e year Iscreascd it sharbokdisg
i the aboéa comigany by girchasing gai of D ahanes Bl by Al Walani Saak which & usde Fouidafon.

11 Frovesios tor imparmeat
B Ao dividends weed ricoletd from S other conpan s’ imsesinents and Waseb Poullny Company during the

bl Porwy pians and o dividaiiks s Sapesied 1o ba secaisad s Dha g pidrs, & full ingsmisnt peoviaiod ws
lahin Tor D dicding in wala ol these imeeslnnts,
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FINANCIAL STATE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

1-IRCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

Thi& Cooparathna and Agrcaitural Credht Eank [Thi Bank | was astablihed In Sana’a urdar 2w no. 33
ol 1882, vz & reewll of the nerger of the Aynculural Credil Bank (ACE) fwhich wes eslsblnbed in 1975
and the Mational Co-operation Dovclopment Bank (WGDB), (which was cstablished in 1974).

The sham holding of the Bank g2 on 31 Decambar 3007 iv 45,705, 0.20% and 543 [ur Le Govemment
represontzd by the Misistry of Finance, the Gencral Gonfederation and the &gricuttural Promotion
Furad raspaciively. The Bask pracheas Al hanking rettvities through s Baead offiea and 40 Brancise
soread all over the govemorates of Yemen.

Thi& Eank 15 resglatersd with s WInkITy of trade and Industry under lesnes no. 5301

The regiztered sddress of the head office i= Al Geyada Sineet, P20, Box 2850, Sana’a, Republic of Yemen.
In Itz mecting Bodid on 25 March J00E, the Bank’s Board of Direciors approwed these Rinancial
elalemenle and desidad Do submil them bo the relsvant authorilies bar approval 1o publish them.

2- EIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Bagk of Prepamaticn of Financial Selemeats

The financial staiements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,

Thia financhal siabamants ara prasanted In Yemand Ryals aed ll vadues ars roundsd (o the nearest ong
Lhou=amnd Femmni Riyal eacepl when clhemwies i indcsbed.

Etatamant of Compllamca

The limancisl vlslemanls e prepaed on 8 gomg concern begie in seeordance wilh Inbemabicnsl
Financizal Reporting Standards |IF S} a5 adopted By the Intemational Accounting Standands Beard
[1ASE] In Tares At 31 Dacambar 3007 and the Inarprataions of M ssamational Fisancial Ragoring
Imerpretations Committes (IFRIC)H of the IA3E i force &t 31 December 2007, the requirements of
the current local prevalling lws and reguiadions and the rules ond Insirecbons kEsuod by the
Centrel Bank of Yemmn ingludieg oo covand By the Cenlral Beank of Yamsn cincular nd. 2 of 2002
regarding the format of the financial statements.

Bl Amaredniants fo pidisied standands gnd interpretations affecliva 1 Janusry 2007,

For the preparation of the=e financial staiements, the following mew stasdards and interpretations
becamic mandrtaly applcable ard wone rot oary adopted [ask wear:

~|FRS T: FiranGal kalramests - Diacleours: ard BT 1 (Aneadment): Tapilal Discloores, ellacie
from 1 Janeary 2007, FRE T introdheces now disclosures to improve the infermation abowt fimanial
Irstrumsinis and B Bank hae dscosad addbona qualkative and quantiaiha Infematon Akt
expozure bo risks srizing from financizl instrumenls, ncheding specfed mnimum dsdosres and
risk management policies. FRE T adds certain new disciosurcs about Snancizl instrements 1o thosc
cumanity requirad by AS 32 nd raplzces. e disclecura raguirsmast for banks, cumasty rmquired by LAE 30,

The other intzrpretations listed below became mand=tory for annuel periods b=ginning oo or after
1 March 2006. The application of these Inberpretations did not resul in substanbal changes to the
Esiik's aceunbing policke of distloaina,

AFRICT: Applying the Restatement Approach under 145 25, effzctive from 1 March 2008

-IFRIC &2 Sopa of IFRS 2, effectiva Tnom 1 May Z0Ds;

IFRIC % Reapsezamenl of embuedded derivalives, slledive from 1 June 2096;

[FRIC10: Imcrim Financial Reporting and Impairment, cffective from 1 Movember 2006;

AFRIC11: IFREZ: Orowp and Traasury Sham Transaciong, affecive from 1 Marcs 2007.

b} Standards and interpretations izsuesd but nof yet efective:

For tha avoldance of doult, the following standards and isEzrpratations. which wero Esued by
1ASE balors 31 Decombear 2007 and g ol yal in ellscl, mve nol Baen adopled sarly:

[FRE &: Oiperating Segments, cffective from 1 January 2009;

-1A5 1 Frasentation of Firancial Statamants (as revizad In 307}, sfactive from 1 Jasasang 2000,

-I%S Z3: Borowing Cosls fas rewised in 20071, efeciive from 1 January 2008;

AFRIGAZ Sorvice Concossion Amangements, cffcctive from 1 Januany Z008;

-IFRIZ1E: Customar Layally Programmes, sfactive rom 1 July F008;

-IFRIC14:145 19: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Axset, Minimum Funding Reguirements and their
Imeraction, efective from 1 January Z00E.

Ther Eranb, chiresma il Fiaremasns Ursl U sppplicalion of Uress slendardaintsmpratalions sl resull in a sgniicasl
impact on figeres and disdiosures on the reporting period they will be adopted.

2-HGHIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIEES (CONTIMUED)

21 Basis of Preparation of Financial $tatements (Continucd)

Statemant of Complisnes [Contisdgd]

The exceptions o lnbemational Financial Reporting Stamdands in complance with local laws 2nd
reguiations |ssued by the Central Bank of Yamen are:

il The adoplion ol immmum lasd pecenlagee b losss oo non peelGemmg loans and advasces
in accordance with the Central Bank of Yemen circular mo. & of 1998 and circular no. 5 of 1958;
I} Tha Iszluslon of the gesaral provision for fel calzulabad en the perfoming Inans and advancas s
the gen=ral wovision lor loms =nd sdvences miher than squity.

iiif) TR non adoption of some of the provisions of A5 39 Finamcial Instrements - Hecognition amd
Wassaramenl rafating 1o the valistion of invasiments avaliable for saleom The hest of Teir valis imleas
=uch imeestments are traded in 2 recogniced stock exchange

I} Th men adoption of some of the provisions of IAE 16: Proparty, Flant and Eqelpmant relafing & the
waksalion of resl sulals owmsd Ly s Bank smd e recogelion of e sunshes 6o revalsalion in the sguily.

2.2 - Elgaicant Aczcanting Judgments and Estimatas

The pregaration of finsncisl slstements regquires mansgement o meke adjustments, esfmaies and
assumphbions that aRccl the applicabon of policies and reporicd amounts of the Bmancal asscls and
lialilities &k Thae date of the Tnancial sieiesments ged the regoeried amounis of revanis ad sepansas
during the reporting period. [stimates considersd by the managemem of the Bask bz have a significant
sk of matarial adjusiment In subsequent pericds primanly comprisa prowislons for spalmeet of
loang aimd sdvancaeThe Bank lskes inlo conerdaralion e folliming faclom shen delermming e
provisions for [oans and advances and contingent lizbaliics:

- Tha ewarall customsrs financlal posltan;

- Rish pereanisge Le. the shility of the cuatomer o conduect profilable beiness activiies and colledt
cagugh moncy to pay the dobt

- Vel ol tha colatersd aed possibdity of trensterming swearahip bo the Reak; aed

- Cost of wettling the debd.

Mangqaman] Eelimetas

The estemates and 2ssocizied aszumplions ame bazed on historical =xpen=nce of the bank and
varlous otier factors that are bellewed by the Bank fo be reasonable snder the clrosmstances,
L el o wilvich T Ure beasiz ol meking Ure jadgsenles sboul camgmg esloss of aeesbs and Rbilliss
that arz motreadily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Tha estimatas and undarying arsumptlons are raviewsd om 3 regular hagks.

Revisions to acoembing estimales are recogniced in the period in which the eslimete is revised if
the revision 2Bects only that perisd or in Bhe period of the revision and friure perisds 8 e redision
#ftacta Doth cumant and fidure perinds.

Z.3-5ummary of Principal Accoemting Pollcles
The Bank Fae apadied, conaleily, T kalowing séeouiling pelicies in daaiing will signiicel ilsimns
of the financial staiements:

Teeeda it Fedlbamenl Diala Accaunling

All “regular way”™ purchases and =ales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, ie. the
faka that tha bank commils fo purchasa tea assat. Regular way punchases of sakis ara purchasas or
ealen of Mgl aeele el regquing debeery ol ssesle wilhin the Gme Tame genemaly selablshed by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Forign cermnivs

i1 The Bank maintzirs = records in Yemeni Rigzls which are the Bank's functioral and presentrton curency.
|0} Transactions denominated in forcign currencies ane inBally recorded in the turctional cumescy ot the:
et of exctangs miling &l he vabe dale Gl the rareciomr. Balanos of meneany saests and il
denominzted in foreign cumencies at the balance sheet date 2re transhaied into Yemeni Riyaks at the aie
of @xchange raka ruling on that date Al realzed and unraalizad gains or lossas rasuling from
revaluglion are Leken bo “olther cperaling noome” or “vlisr opsreling sxpeiee” in e noome slekmmnl
[ii] The B2nk docs not deal in forward forcign exchange contrads.

IENTS FOR THE YEAR

2-3IENIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of Principal Accounting Policies [Continued}

Ravanua Racogniian

0 Inlereel ircome i recogniced in B incoms stsbement on lhe avorus basm ueng e ellede
interost rabe method. The cffective interest raie i csiablished om initial recognition of the
Fimzmzial arzatWabllity and I nob raviesd suBsanuantly. Hewesar, In andar o eomply with tha
requirementz of the Central Bank of Yemen cicular no. € of 1996, the Bank doe= not sccrue
Interost Income on mon-performing baans and credit tacilities. When an acoount ks classiied
ae non-paforsing, all uncelleclad intersal mlaling lo the thiss montB priar 1o calsgori By
the koan 25 nom-perdorming is reversed from income and recorded as uncollected interest
Incoma. Incoma from InvRsEmests e aconued on notfication of estitiamant. Oividand Incoma
i recogmized when Uss righl o receive peymenl iv eelablisbed

{iijin accordance with the Contral Bank of Yomen circular no. 2 of 2000, any provisions written back
ara mhidad nnder "afher cparating neoms®,

fiil Commis=zion 2nd other fe= income are recogniced when accrued,

Cach and Cazh Equivalenis

Fir U punpesse of pragariog Lhe elalsmenl o cash Dows, Geah and cesh squivalenls conssl of ash
on hand, cash balances with the Central Bank of Yemen othor tham statutory reseree balances,
damand daparits with othir hanks, trazsung bills aed certficaies of daposh wish the Candral Bank of
Femen malurmg within Sees montie: from the dale of soguision,

DOue from Banks

Dt and babancws dea Trom anks ane presenbad o ol afler @ducting g amt hal, fae
besn writizn off and any impaiment i their value. All customer deposits 2re camied at amortised oost.
Traasury Ems

Treasury Bille inswsd by Ube Cenbral Bank, of Yemen on behall of the Mmialry of Financs sre ulalsd
Fttheir nominal value, adjusicd for any umamartised discount outstanding at the balance sheet date.

Carlilicates of Dapaail
Certificates of deposit m=ued by the Central Bank of Yemen and are staied at cost The accrued

Imtwrast on cafBlcates of dapost |5 Incleded endar "dahl balances and other aseals™.

Preimion for Loszes on Loens and Contingent Liskiligies
In compliamce with the Central Bank of Yomaen circular no. & of 1986 and cincular moo 5 of 1598,
rOvEGn ia niveds Mor apecilicc [oans, evardmlls, sdhances and conlingand lisbiiiss, in addtion
to a percentage fior general risks calculated on the total of other loans, cverdrafts and contingent liz-
BliEks aftar deducing hadances secured by daposis and banks" quarantaes.
The provison is delermined beed on periodic comprebengive reviews of Lhe credil poriiolic and
contingent liabilitics. Accardingly, provision is made in acoordance with the following ratcs:

= Pariamming lnars Including waleh lnans 1

= Performing contingencies inchafing wetch acoounts ™
= Mon-porfomming keans and contingencies:
- Sulelandsrd dabla 19%
- Doubtful debi= 45%
- Baddabis 100rs
Whe=n = loan is known o be wecolleclible, after all the neceszary legal procedures Baye been

compleicd, and the final loss has been deicrmined, or S direcled by the Cenbral Bank of Temen
upon rewviger of Tha porfiolic, § will be wrilten off by debitig he grovialon, Lona 1o cistonmsns am
presented in the balance =heet met of provizion and uncollected imterest. Procesds from loans and
adwances previously writien off In prior years are credBed 1o "other operating e ome™

Availsble for 3ale Invesimants

All invcstments are initially recognised a1 cost, Being the fair value of the consideration given
Inchsdieg acpdaiion ceata, & of e finsncis stetamants data, Tha prailalla for sala investmants
are clas=afeed eher 23 investment i azsocizkes or investments in otfer companies.

1) Inwestmant In assoclata:

The walue ol the meestmenl in 2n ssodals e oedualed by sddng or sublrecting, = balarcs shesl
date, acoonding to the Bank's share i the associate equity. The value of change is recognised in
e Incomes pREhamant.

iil Investmest in cther companies:

Investments in othicr companics appear, 35 kong-tom investmonks, of costvaluc. A provision & madefor
Ay parnsisnl decling in teir valuee compaled] on indiviceal Dueas,

B lant and equ nct of accumulated depreciation

Proparmy, plamt ani squipmest am recormed &b roat o e dassof pinchasa

Costinchades the porchass price and relatsd esgpenzss

Frehold land is not depreciabed. ObRar progserty omd cquipmont Home are staked ok cost or revalucd
amdmarila s et mmdaloed dapracialion

Depreciation is prowided on all progerty, plant and equipment, other than frechold land, 2t rates
cabzulated bo write off tha cost o ravaluad amount, less astimated residual vadua hased om pricas
prevaibng al lhe dale of scyuisibon, of sach avsel over il espeded unedul Bz using (he alraghl
linc method at the rates shown bolow:

= Eulkdings and consiniciions FL S
= Viehicles 2%
* FumBwe, machinory and cquipmoents.  10%
= HTWe g poiils of Gale 20

* Improwements o leasehold progerty ears of lease or estimaied useful ffe whicheser is lower.
Rcal Estabe Froporfics Acguined feom Customers In Goiticment of Loans Pending Saic Coliaieral Pending Saic
Tha Eank accaslonally acquires rsal sstata i sattlamsant of cartaln kans and advances.

In mcpoedence with the Banks Law mo. 38 of 1988 and the Ceniral Bank of Yemen instructions msseis
acquirosd from oesiomors in settiemient of kans are included In B balance shoot undier “debi balanoss
and ilher sesata™ wsing ta velue ol which thess seesbe wana acguin les sy declins in their velug
Ay decline is charged bo the income stxiement.

Social Secanty Provision

The employees of the Bank ane comiributing be the social secwrity scheme In acordance with the
Regublic of Yemean's Social Inewascs Law o 25 of 1981,

Contingent Liakilities and Sommitsents

Contingant lahMtas and cormmimants, In which ha Bank ks & party, ars prasantan off balancs
shest, ned of marging, under “comtingent liabilities 2nd commitmentz" as they do mol repres=nt
actual assets or labliibes ot the balanoe sheet daie.

Leaging

Leases are clzssificd as finamce leases whenever the torms of the lease transfer substantially all
tea risks and rewmnds of ownership b e lesnes. Bl othar leases ana clarsfad as aperating
|emaes. Al the leases entered inko by the Bank are cperating lesses,

Rental agreements

Reardals gayebdy pnder s acs are cherged o incoma statamsnt on 3 siraight-ling hasis ovarthe
berm of the relevant lease.

Lang tarm loans

Lonyg Lerm losers g slaled s coelin sccordencs WS 38 Fmancisl rstuments - Recognilion amd
Moasuremenk.

TRER IO

In accondance to Articks no 21 of the Cooperative asd Agricubural Credit Bank Law no. 38 of 1832,
b Bank Is exempied from commarcial and Induseral probit tae. The Bank, also, 15 mod subject to
U Incoune Tas Law s 31 of 1987 and ils amendmente in the Regeldican Decree Law no. 12 of
1439 and the prowisions of article no. 85 of the Banks Law mo. 38 of 1054,

Zakat

The B=nk pays zsket, in scconfance with the Zskai Law no. B of 1990 (o the Zakal Authority thet
dieudes on ks allscation.

Ralatad Party Tranesedions

Dizclozures are made in the financial satzments of rarsactions caried ow with refated parties
such a5 such as Board of Direchars mambars, sanlor manzgamant, thelr familias and compashas
inwhich they are nmjor owner ae well g2 omjor sherebolders, olber than the Govermment, omning,
dircctly or indirectly, 8% of the woting rights.

& party ks conshiarad redatad IT heing abla bo aher comiral of avanciss signdfcant and matarial
influsnee cver the Bask's fimancial and opemting decision making process. The Bank deals with
rodated parties on e same basis by which itdeals with othor unrelaicd parbies In compliance Wish
1 praveigion of the law and e narralive rasabalions: of the Canlral Bk of Yawsi issusd in the
circular no. 4 of 19349

D 31 DEC
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i BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIEE (CONTNUED)

23 Sesmary of Principal Accounting Policiss [Conlinusd)

Impairment of Assets

The Bank xs=es= at each balance sheet date whether there is an indication that an 2s==t may be

impaired. ¥ any indication esists, or when anreal impaiment Sesting for an as==t = regueired, the
Bank makes an estimate of the as=et's recoverable amowst.

&n assct's recoverablie amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to scll or cash
gomcration unit's fair vakes lcss costs 1o sell and its walue in use and determined for an indrsidual
assofs, unkess the assctdocs not generaie cash inflows that arc largely indcpendent of thosc from
other assces or Bank asscis.

Wihon the camying amount of an asset cxcends Bs recoverable amount, the 2ssct |5 considored
impaired and is writicn dowm to fis recocrable amount. impairment lesses of continuing opcrations
art recognised inthe mcome stabement consisicnt with the fanction of the impained 2s5ct

v A assessment is made 2t each reporting date a5 to whesher theee i= any indication that prewiously
regognized impaiment lkesss may no longer exit or may have decreged. F such mdication esits, the
recovershle amount i esimabed.

v A ey ioaly reCaopn sl impainmand koss i reverawd only il Uers s bean 8 chamge in s selimalss
1k=e] T rlabammiess e fearsts raccassrahibs armcdint s e L Ingaimsi ees wie recooibzad. BThet
I5 e aks tha camying amount of tha assel s Imcraased b B reeovarabils amound. That Incnsasad
AmMount canmct @xcead the camying amount at would ko bean detarminad, ned of Sapreciation,
had no Impairment kos Bean recognised for the assel I prior years. Such rowersad 15 recog-
niscd Inthe income statemosd wnless the asscf s carnicd at revalucd amounk, inwhich casc Ehe
reversal is treaked as a revaluation increasc. Afcr such a reversal, the depreciation charge is
sdjusied in fukure perods 1o allocate the asset's revised camying amowsd, less any residual
valws, on a systemic basis over its resaining wseful life.

Offsetting the fimancial 2ss=ts and liabilities
Firancial asscts and financial Fabilitizs are caly offsct and the resubtand net bakance is reporicd imthe

balance sheet when theee is 2 legally enforceabie right to offsct the recognised amounts and the Bank
infends bo cifher scitic on 3 met basis or to malise the 2ssct and soitic e Babiity simultancousiy,

3 FINANCIAL INETRUMENTS

The Bank's fimancial Instruments are represented In Hnznclal assets and NabiiRks. Financhl assets
Include caxh balancos, cument accounis and doposhs with Banies, trasury blls, corffoahes of
deposk with tha Ceniral Bank of Yemen, invesiments, and loans and advances 10 customess and
banks. Financlal labifdes Incdude custiomers’ deposhs and balances due 1o banks. Ao, fmanclal
Irestrumamis Include rights 2nd obllgations stxicd In “comingant labifties and commBmanis”.

Falr value of fimanclal Instrumsnis

Bacad om tha waluation of tha Bank's aseets and llahilifles sEated In s notak o thiea Tnancial
statamants, the falr valus of tha financlal Insbumants do mot ditfar fundameantzly fram Ehedr falr
valuas & the halasss shnet data

& RIE¥ MAKAGEMENT OF FINAKCIAL INETRUMENTS

Rk i inliarand i Ches Bank's aclivilies bed il is menaged threagh 4 prosasa of angang idanlilisation,
medgiressnl and seeitoring, aubjsc] to risk limile and alhar contega, This procesa ol riak
mesdsinianl ia cilical e the Bank's coibing pralilahilily and asch individioal within the
Bl i prc el s o Ui ik scproariings nédalioeg B0 hig or har reaponaibililies

The Bank ia sepeasd lo crell righ, liguidily risk, intaras] mile ek and sechengs rals risk,

Cradif rmk

Losne and crsdil lociliie: o cmslomsn g benks, curmenl sccountz amd depoeils with Banke gd
rigghibe gl clelisalions Meqm ol an conaidanad s Snancisl aeasls aeponsd o cnsdil ik, Cradil rak
raprazania fhe inahility of these pertiss by mest thair abligefinons whan Sy Tall diae Inondsr bo comgly
‘with thia Cantral Bani of Yamen clroalar me, 190 of 13597 partaining te tha managament of credht risk
EepoEUng, B Bank adheres o certzin minkmum stasdands In order b property managa s cradi fsk
In additics 1o the siandards stated im the above-mesdioned circular, addgional proccdures
applicd oy the Bank to minimize the credit risk cxposurs arc:

» preparing crodit studies on oestomers and banks Before dealing with them and debermining their
relabed credik risk rates;

- pbimning =ufficient collateral bo minmize the credit rigk =xpozure which may et from financial
problums Tecing cuslomers or banbs;

- Toallga-pp o peaciod raviews of cuslomens and beska in ardse L ewalugle e

Tirusirial e i, crod it rasing ad thia reguined prosiaien Tor non-perfoming b,

- dieiris g cradie portfolio and halsness with Bani oaar divanaBflad sechors to misdmizs cosceniratios
of cradiE risk.

T talbla Daboww shows the maximuss sxposun to credl ek Torthe components of T halancs shask. Tha
miaxi miem aEpasun |5 shirem gross, before the offect of mitigation By thee usa of collatoral agroamants

H Emcrmber A December
nar X
Bl biden ] Fi 00
Gt o Pl 2 resaiac boldies Wi thed Gl Bk el Weniin deechacing <osh g4 band) 1442560 tT) B
Cex bom Saak L4k ] Wypl
Trumary bt 3 HTIH TELE
Cadilaira 2l deprw! vt Ceabrel Bank, of Yvewa 4 500 L3 8, 4
Cowarmsl bark: LE ] l.-lnlll-_
Loates aned e aric e o CusionecTs, e of prowicion ALEE13 15FETS
Aualiable dor e Irmsimends. ref b IR
[ malar e ars pinar ey 17 18.50
Tkl ot 198,57 ad SHLEET S
Lanirs scrzants ssd sier conmadreat SEE1AET pa il ipe]
Tratl ey il e v perata 1R T35 ELTE R

The Bank manages concentration of risk by distributing the portfolio ower diversificd cooromic
saciors and geographical locations. Mobe no. 3¢ shows tha distribution of finamclal Instrumends
over difarend econcmin sardors and nobs ne. 35 shows tha

digdriksalicn of linancial inslramenls based om gaouraghical kzalons,

Liquidiiy rimk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be wnabic to mect its payment obligations wien they fall
due endar nrmal circumstances. To [ImiE this risk, the bank’s management In addition to Hs core
dancal bars, mandiqas areals with quidity In mind and monbors et cash lows and lquidity
on & daiky bessie and hes frranged divarailied Tuding o e,

The table b=low =hows the matunty analy=is for inandal habiktes that shows B remaning
contractual maturities:

Mg al 31 Decsmnber 2007 Hrome
Less Ban From3te  maondhs b Oner
Imonths  § months 1 year 1 year Total
LIABILITIES TR0 il YRU09 TR0 TR0
[hpe 1 bank= 10,70 = 2 - 19,706
Castomers’ degomibs 53108 11,74 - - 117,113,434
Laang lenm leang - - - 143 E06 143, B8
Tl lialsilitman 105,341,730 11762 41 - 143 E6 117 268,046
Az at 31 Decanibar 2008 From &
Lessthan FromJ3te  months o Ower
I manlha B il ha 1 usr T st Todal
LIARILITIES YRDI YR AR08 YR'D YEDI
Doasa B Baanibes. B28ed - - - BZ&s
Cumstomsrs degoaits 40840338 T.TES 156 - - 43436 352
Long tcm kans . - - 142,606 142, E06
Toial lizbdltes 40,732 697 T TBE 156 = 143 06 48,55 G55

In geddition Lo Uhe absos, noda no, 52 ahews the malurily analysis of ssals and liabilities and
tha nat gap hivhwaan fie i

v i el Ll
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Health

WHO wants total ban
on tobacco advertising

he World Health
Organization (WHO)
urged governments to
protect the world’s 1.8
billion young people by
imposing a ban on all tobacco advertis-
ing, promotion and sponsorship on the
eve of World No Tobacco Day, May
31, 2008. This year’s campaign focus-
es on the multi-billion dollar efforts of
tobacco companies to attract young
people to its addictive products
through sophisticated marketing.

Recent studies prove that the more
that young people are exposed to
tobacco advertising, the more likely
they are to start smoking. Despite this,
only five percent of the world’s popu-
lation is covered by comprehensive
bans on tobacco advertising, promo-
tion and sponsorship. Tobacco compa-
nies, meanwhile, continue targeting
young people by falsely associating
use of tobacco products with qualities
such as glamour, energy and sex
appeal.

"In order to survive, the tobacco
industry needs to replace those who
quit or die with new young con-
sumers," said Dr. Margaret Chan, the
Director-General of the WHO. "It does
this by creating a complex 'tobacco
marketing net' that ensnares millions of
young people worldwide, with poten-
tially devastating health conse-
quences."

"A ban on all tobacco advertising,
promotion and sponsorship is a power-
ful tool we can use to protect the
world’s youth," Chan added.

Since most people start smoking
before the age of 18, and almost a quar-

Ever-present advertising lures young people, especially in developing coun-
tries, to try smoking or other tobacco products that usually result in danger-

ous addictions.

ter of those before the age of 10, tobac-
co companies market their products
wherever youth can be easily accessed
— in the movies, on the Internet, in
fashion magazines and at music and
sports venues. In a WHO study of 13 to
15-year-olds in schools worldwide,
more than 55 percent of students
reported seeing advertisements for cig-
arettes on billboards in the previous
month, while worldwide approximate-
ly 20 percent owned an item with logo
of a cigarette brand on it.

The developing world, of which
Yemen is a part, home to more than 80

The World Health Organization's World No Tobacco Day urges all countries
to adopt bans on tobacco advertising. There are more than 1.1 billion smok-
ers worldwide.

percent of the world’s youth, is most
aggressively targeted by tobacco com-
panies. Young women and girls are
particularly at risk, with tobacco com-
panies seeking to weaken cultural
opposition to their products in coun-
tries where women have traditionally
not used tobacco.

"The tobacco industry employs
predatory marketing strategies to get
young people hooked to their addictive
drug," said Dr Douglas Bettcher,
Director of WHO’s Tobacco Free
Initiative.

"But comprehensive advertising
bans do work, reducing tobacco con-
sumption by up to 16 percent in coun-
tries that have already taken this leg-
islative step."

"Half-measures are not enough,"
added Dr Bettcher. "When one form of
advertising is banned, the tobacco
industry simply shifts its vast resources
to another channel. We urge govern-
ments to impose a complete ban to
break the tobacco marketing net," he
said.

The WHO released a report earlier
this year that showed that not one sin-
gle country in the entire world fully
implements important tobacco control
measures. The full adoption of these
strategies to lessen tobacco use, includ-
ing monitoring usage, public aware-
ness campaigns, advertising bans and
increased taxes on tobacco products,
could prevent millions of premature
deaths.

Source: World Health Organization

Safety measures during
lightning high season

By: Khaled Al-Hilaly

With the coming of the rainy season in
Yemen, which commences in May every
year, lightning-related incidents make
news headlines on television and in
newspapers. More than three such inci-
dents have been reported so far this year
since the rainy season began.

“Lightning struck and killed a boy and
his sister and injured their father last
month in the Old City of Sana’a,” reports
Col. Abdulkarim Al-Bukhaiti, director of
civil defense for the capital secretariat of
Sana’a. “The strike also damaged their
home.” Lightning bolts are electrical dis-
charges caused by imbalances between
storm clouds and the ground or between
the clouds themselves. Lightning strikes
the earth approximately a hundred times
every second.

Just because this year’s rainy season
was short doesn’t mean lightning acci-
dents will decrease; to the contrary, the
peak season for lightning in Yemen is
next month.

“The lightning season starts in the mid-
dle of May and continues to the end of
July,” notes Rashid Al-Ariqi, director of
the forecasting administration at the
Yemen Meteorology Service, which is
part of the Civil Aviation and
Meteorology  Authority. He adds,
“Lightning reaches its prime time in
June.”

Rural residents in Yemen are particu-
larly unaware of how to protect them-
selves from lightning and thus, are
exposed to more risk.

Those governorates experiencing the
most lightning throughout the year are
Hajjah, Ibb, Taiz, Raymah, Dhamar, Al-
Mahwit and Sana’a. “There are high
mountains in these areas, which is where
lightning chooses the nearest point on the
ground to discharge its electricity,” Al-
Ariqi explained.

Worldwide, some 2,000 people are
killed and many others are injured by
lightning every year. There are no avail-
able statistics in Yemen regarding the
number or severity of lightning-related
incidents, nor are there records concern-
ing its victims, as the media only reports
fatal strikes, not lightning injuries.

There are likely far more lightning-
related accidents and fatalities than the
actual number reported to authorities
because victims of lightning accidents in
rural areas don’t seek help, doctors don’t
record the incidents as being related to
lightning strikes and lightning-related
deaths often go unreported.

However, “Dozens of incidents occur
weekly,” Al-Arigi notes.

In an effort to avoid accidents, the
Yemen Meteorology Service periodically
distributes forecasts and lightning warn-
ings via television and radio channels to
those governorates exposed to lightning
storms. “Don’t remain on house roofs or
mountaintops and don’t use any electrical
equipment or computers during rain and
lightning storms,” the YMS warning
states.

Additionally, Al-Ariqi warns, “People
shouldn’t remain outdoors on flat ground,
use umbrellas or seek shelter under tall
isolated trees. If you’re in a vehicle, make
sure all doors are closed, windows are
rolled up and don’t use the car antenna.”
Metal rods such as those found in umbrel-
las and car antennas conduct electricity
and readily attract lightning.

If inside, avoid showering or washing
dishes during a lightning storm. The
meteorology service also advises avoid-
ing the use of telephones, televisions or
any other electronic equipment that con-
ducts electricity.

Lightning strikes can cause cardiac
arrest (when the heart unexpectedly stops

beating) or severe burns, with some vic-
tims suffering a variety of lasting symp-
toms such as memory loss, sleep disor-
ders and joint stiffness.Al-Ariqi urges
further studies in order to determine
which Yemeni areas most frequently are
struck by lightning. Once identified, these
areas can be provided rods and other pro-
tective measures to conduct a lightning
bolt’s electricity to the ground without
harm.

As he explains, “A lighting rod is a
common method of protection against
lightning strikes because the rod allows
the electrical current from the strike to
flow to the ground without causing any
heat damage.”
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sectors such as:

- Cleaning services companies
- Contractor companies
- All kind of factories

- Car wash centers

- Oil companies

- Trade centers

- Hospitals

- Poultries

- Airports

- Hotels
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Al-Hadha Co. For Trad. & General Agencies
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Agents for Karcher commercial and industrial cleaning equipments

Our products serve the industrial and commercial

- Vehicles showrooms and maintenance workshops
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Almaz Pro Automated Vehicle Location [(AVL)
The first Vehicle Tracking System in Yemen

VITAMIN C

Vitamin C acts as an antioxidant, protction people from the 1] L - = Er B R i
harmful effects of car exhaust, cigarette smoke and air ~ - i ; !
pollution. It also helps maintain capillaries, bones and teeth

and aids in the absorption of iron. The serving size of

Vitaene C holds a perfect amount of this Vitamin (100ml)

effective for all people, because an average dally

supplement ranges from 75-125mg.*

VITAMIN B3 (Niacin)

Niacin works together with B2 to release energy from
carbohydrates. It also regulates the level of cholesterol -
decreases the level of “bad” cholesterol and increases the
level of “good”.

VITAMIN B6

This vitamin is the master vitamin that helps the formation of
several neutrotransmitters and therefore is an essential ; T T
nutrient in the regulation of mental processes and possibly i il
mood. Vitaene C holds 14mg‘of vitamin B6, where as the
common daily supplement is 10-25mg.* .

VITAMIN B2

It actlvateséwtamm B6 and helps to convert carbohydrates For Mora Infarmation Contact |
b i on- o ¥ ALMAZ Prodigy Systems
The umque adjusted formulation of Pokka ey Tr—l +‘+G? 1 444:. _:Hf! F.;u +967 1 446590
is Qons:dered one of the bes; in the world, i igy-sys.com
W .ﬁ.'.pn:rdl_gy -5YS. i
Distributors for Yemen: Al-Nakheel General Trading
Tel.: Sana’a 01 532831/2, Taiz 04 258428, Aden 02 380682, Mukalla 05 305351, Hodeidah 03 208861
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Culture

60th anniversary of Nakbah commemorated
with folk dance-theatre performance

By: Fahad Faruqui
For The Yemen Times
mff11@columbia.edu

emen and Palestine

have a special

relationship;

Palestinians make up

one of the largest
expatriate communities in Yemen, and
President Ali Abdullah Saleh's
initiative to reconcile rival Palestinian
factions Fatah and Hamas is more
proof of the bond. The United
Kingdom, which also has a sizeable
Palestinian population,
commemorated their plight with a
performance combining traditional
dabke folk dancing of the Levant
region with modern theatrical
production.

A new adaptation of renowned
Palestinian writer Ghassan Kanafani’s
story, “Ila Haifa” (Returning to Haifa),
showed British audiences a personal
account of the Nakbah, meaning “the
catastrophe,” in 1948 when 418 Arab

villages in Palestine were reduced to
dirt and some 800,000 people were
displaced.

Performed by the British dabke
dance troupe, Al-Zaytouna, the show
ran from May 8 to 10 at London’s
Greenwood Theater to commemorate
the 60th anniversary of the Nakbah.

The story recounts the tragic tale of
a couple torn from their infant
daughter, left behind in Haifa during
the Nakbah, using a combination of
acting, song and dabke, which is a
traditional form of Arab folk dancing.
Dabke, which means "stomping [of the
feet]," is danced by both men and
women at weddings or other
celebrations. The story of Ila Haifa and
its inventive use of dabke counter the
notion that the occupation has stripped
away the Palestinian people’s identity.

“Ila Haifa” epitomizes the agony
and struggle of Palestinians, depicting
what it would be like to open your eyes
to an occupied territory, walk timidly
through checkpoints to go to school
every morning, become an adult in a
marred atmosphere of curfews and

An advertisement poster for ‘“Ila Haifa,” depicting Palestinians’ forced
expulsion during the Nakbah, through song and traditional dabke folk danc-
ing.

body searches, find love amid a canvas
of hatred and have children who likely
will endure the same ordeal.

While there’s no immediate answer
to all of these questions, the
performance portrays the cyclical life
of exiled Palestinians and how they
long to return to their homeland.

The tragedy of “Ila Haifa”

The story’s protagonists are Sa’eed
and Safiyyah, a Palestinian couple
eventually exiled to London following
the Nakbah and forced to leave behind
their young daughter.

Sa’eed and Safiyyah are villagers
living a happy pastoral life with their
infant  daughter, Layla. They
eventually move to Haifa, where they
live contentedly. Songs using the oud,
a type of lute, hail the hospitality of
village life and the strong ties between
city folk and those living in the
countryside.

The songs, music and colorful
costumes represent the carefree life
Palestinians cherished until the day
when their songs of love, hospitality
and friendship were replaced by
gunfire and jackbooted soldiers
marching into the city of Haifa.

Their gaiety suddenly was replaced
by despair as soldiers took up their
positions and overpowered the
residents of Haifa, who subsequently
were expelled.

During this turmoil, Safiyyah
manages to locate a bruised Sa’eed,
but they are ousted from Haifa before
they are able to find their daughter.
Safiyyah wails out her child’s name —
“Layla!” — as she’s forced from her
home.

Days in exile

In the second act, Sa’eed and Safiyyah
are living in London and attempting to
embrace the cultural norms of the
West. Every day, Sa’eed goes to work

Al-Zaytouna dance troupe performs “Ila Haifa,” which tells the story of two Palestinians forced to leave behind their
infant daughter during the catastrophic events of 1948, for audiences in London.

in his very proper suit, holding an
umbrella, but despite the garb, he’s
unable to integrate into society.

As soon as he returns home from
work, Sa’eed removes his coat in a
rage and wraps his head in a kuffiyeh
(a men’s checkered headscarf) to
regain his Palestinian identity. He later
attempts to dance dabke for a group of
women in a bar, who are appalled his
movements.

One evening, as Safiyyah and
Sa’eed reminisce about their life in
Haifa, they decide that now, 20 years
later, it’s time to visit their former
homeland.

Back to occupied territory

In the following scene, they return to
occupied Palestine, lining up with the
other refugees to cross the border
checkpoint. They feel disgraced at
how the Israeli soldiers treat

Palestinians, preventing some from
entering their homeland, but they

remain patient. However, after
crossing the border, Sa’eed becomes
enraged.

He says to his wife, “Finding one’s
true home means searching below the
dust, but when we [Palestinians] look
beneath the dust, we only see more
dust.”

Once back in Haifa, Safiyyah
recognizes her old house; it hasn’t
changed at all. A Jewish woman opens
the door and listens as she and Sa’eed
inquire about their daughter Layla.
The woman tells them that she’s at
work and invites them inside.

Layla returns home in a uniform —
one belonging to an Israeli soldier.
Safiyyah reaches out to embrace her,
but the daughter shuns her, telling her
parents that DNA doesn’t make one a
Palestinian and that she was brought

up speaking Hebrew, listening to
Israeli songs and partaking in Israeli
dance and culture.

Listening to Layla, Sa’eed and
Safiyyah are reduced to tears, but
accept that the daughter they knew has
died. Following this disheartening
reunion, the couple finally rejoices at
their return to their homeland and
dance the dabke as they did before the
Nakbah.

As one of the performers at the
show’s finale said, “We’re telling
people that no matter what happens to
us, we’ll always be joyful as we resist
the occupation.”

Fahad Faruqui is a writer who
studied philosophy of religion at
Columbia University in the United
States before pursuing a master’s in
Jjournalism. He also has hosted a talk
show on Aaj TV.

A - Senior Electrical Engineer:
Responsibilities:

Requirements:

3-  Knowledge of:

A first class Industrial Contracting Company
Announcing Vacancies for the Posts of Senior Electrical Engineer
and Shipping Manager

A first class Industrial Contracting Company responsible for the installation of a Steel Manufacturing Plant
requires applicants for the two following positions:

1-  To manage all aspects of Electrical Installation.

2-  To liaise with European and Asian equipment suppliers and supply technical feed back.

3-  To design and purchase basic electrical systems not included in main equipment supply (e.g. lighting
and local power distribution network).

1-  Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering.
2- A minimum of five years relevant experience in Industrial Sector.

e DC/AC Motors & Controls

4-
5.
6-

B- Shipping Manager:

Responsibilities:
1-  To manage all aspects of the company transport and shipping.
2-  To liaise with European Equipment Suppliers.
3-  To organize Goods to be shipped to Yemen from: Europe, India, China & Korea.
4-  To ensure speedy compliance with all Government/Customs regulations relating to shipping/imports.
5-  To ensure efficient trans-shipment of Goods within Yemen.
Requirements:
1- A minimum of Bachelor's degree in relevant field.
2- A minimum of five years experience in relevant field.
3-  Good understanding of Government/Customs regulations & procedures relating to Imports.
4-  Good contacts within the shipping industry.
5-  Good contacts for internal road transportation.
6-  Fluency in both written & spoken English and Arabic Languages.
7-  Very good experience with computers and office software and programs.
8- Very good interpersonal and communication skills.

Both positions are initially based in Sana'a but will eventually require to locate in Mukalla. We offer excellent
remuneration packages for the right person in these senior company positions.

Applications with CV’s, should be submitted within THREE weeks of this advertisement for these positions
to the Email Address: ind.yemen@ gmail.com

The selected candidates will be contacted for an interview. He/She should bring copies of their supported
documents.

* DC Drives

* PLC's

* Power distribution & Protections.
Fluency in both written & spoken in English and Arabic Languages.
Very good experience with computers and office software and programs.
Very good interpersonal and communication skills.

@

documents:

Invitation for General Bid
NO. (7) 2008 year

The TV and Radio General Corporation declared its interest in inviting
for general bid number (7) 2008 year for importing, supervising
installment, checking , operating , confirming , submitting , and guarantee
of ELECTRICITY GENERATOR DYNAMOS WITH ITS STUFF FOR
YEMENI TV CHANNEL.

All the interested participants apply with their written request for this bid during
the official work time to the following address:

The TV and Radio General Corporation — Engineering Section — General
Administration for Projects - tel: (01/ 230751)

For buying and having the entire bid documents with receipt: (500 $) non refund.
The deadline of selling the documents is: 18/6/2008.

The file should be enveloped and sealed with the red wax and submitted to the
secretary of bids and out-bids committee of the corporation. The file should be
addressed with name of the authority, the name of the project, the number of the bid,
and the name of the applicant, and the file should include all the following

1-  Submitting unconditional banking warranty with amount 7000 $ valid for 120
days starting from the day of opening the files.

2-  Submitting a copy of the taxing card valid 2008: all the foreign bidders, who
don't work, submit a copy of the register documents for extra cost taxation
from their countries.

3-  Submitting a copy of the insurance card valid for 2008 year (the insurance
cards are only requested from those companies which have assets in Yemen and
have the right to utilize from the revenues given from the general corporation
for social insurance in Yemen).

4- A copy of the alms tax valid for 2008 year.

5-  The deadline of receiving the documents and opening the files at 11:00 am on
Sunday morning 22/6/2008 at the main branch of the corporation.
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Ahmed Muraisi
Real Estate Rentals
Tel: 733802855
Hadda and Diplomatic Areas
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For rent

UNDER ONE ROOF. Y/

Hadda Str. Sana’a Infront of Yemenia Airline,
Tel: 240207 Fax: 268041,E-mail:ALZAHRA@Y.NET.YE
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M&M Logistics &
Aviation Services.

International Freight Forwarding
(Air/Sea/Land)

International Packing Standard
Warehousing (The biggest in
Sana’a)

International Worldwide Door to
Door Services.

Customs Clearance
(Airports/Ports/Border)
Arranging of Exemptions.

Over flying & Technical stops for
aircrafts at all Yemen Airports.

Tel : 01-531221/531231

Fax:  01-531130

Hot line: 733030062 (24 Hours)
Address: 36 Amman St, Sana’a -
Republic Of Yemen.

P.0. Box 15053, Sana’a - Republic Of
Yemen.

E-Mail: md&mgenservices@y.net.ye
Website: www.mmlogisticsyemen.com

Cargo oo

Bl Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders for
packing, customs clearance, domestic
& international forwarding air & sea.
Contact: Al-Nasim cargo forwarder.
Al-Zubairi St Sanaa. Tel: 275903 /
216048 / 407905

Tel: 2663175 - 505290
Fax: 267619
P.0 Box: 5465
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AI-SHAIBANI RESTAURANT SUPER DELUK
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Trans Global Logistics
& Services Ltd.

‘We bring your World Closer

¢ Air/Sea/Land forwarding.

* Packing/Land Transportation.

« International door to door services.

* Warehousing /Logistical planning.

» Customs clearance/Local
Visa/Documentation handling.

* Real Estate Services.

« Ticking Reservations & General
Tourism Services.

* Courier Services.

Tel:-967-1-444226/440460
Fax:-967-1-445696

P.O.Box 16884, Sana'a Rep.of
Yemen

Email:transglobal @yemen.net.ye
Email:transglobal2 @yemen.net.ye
Website:
www.transglobalyemen.com

FOR SALE

Deep 5Sea Fishing Trawler
in Aden Port - R.O Yemen

Length: 34Mir
Flag: Panama
2 Fish holds

Freezing Vessel

Contacr: 02 248062 | 73351381817 34864701

Job Seekers

B Ali Alsodmi, Yemeni,
Bachelor in English, faculty
of Education, seeking for a
good job in a company or in
any field.

Contact: 771378309

| Specialist teacher in
Arabic language for all
levels, want to give private
lessons, good command in
English. Suitable prices.
Contact: 733946335

| Details: Fuzkat
G.Davlator (Uzbakistan)

Situation

Vacant

Ml School requires teachers
for next academic year-all
subjects.

Telephone: 733700975

Education : -  high

profession — international
affairs finance economist.
Experience — 10 years .
Abilities to work

finance , banking , credit

trade

investments, technical skills ,

analytical , relation ship
management etc.

Contact Address: Sana'a city .
Hadda madina

+9671416371- home  +

967711872453- mobile

M Yonos Mahyoub, diploma
in  security  Computer,
Courses in Security.

Contact: 711881930

Bl Specialist teacher in
Arabic language for all levels,
wants to give private lessons,
good command in English.
Suitable prices.

Contact: 733946335

Il Bachelor English,

faculty of Arts, certificate

in

from Ncc institute in Business
correspondence, computer +
excellent  experience in
commercial depart, business
correspondence and
translation.

Contact: 7775 69977

Il Diploma in Public health
and diploma in business

English, experience working

in some public health
programms, would like to
work in any field.

Contact: 711991288 -
771508233

-Awsan, An Arabic

teacher, in
teaching Foreigners, good
experience in this field.
Would like to teach

Contact: 700679293

Wl Electronic &

communication Engineer, 8

specialized

years  experience, sales

engineer, maintenance
engineer,
communication system,
control system.

Contact: 777 070 011

Economics

Oil
and

English
Business

Bachelor in
administration,
language,
correspondence, Ms office
(India). Seeking a good job in
a company Foreign
Embassy.

Contact: 711109391

or

Real Estate

& Furniture

M One story villa, 9 rooms
+ 8 bathrooms and toilets +
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(1) Yamaha Plano. Original Made in Japan,
Black, Model: Ul, Quality Certified By
Professional (2) Peugeot 307, Automatic,

Full option, Year 2006, 29.000km. Rose
color, No Accident.

Contact: 734 554 055,733 568 570

Accommodations in diplomatic area:
e Flats... (1) 3 rooms, 2bths, kitchen monthly $ 250
(2) 4 rooms, 2 baths and kitchen monthly $ 350.00
(3) New super lux finishing, 4 rms, 3 bths, kit. $ 500
e Fully furnished flat 3 rms, 3 bthsm kit. $ 400.00
e One story villa. 4 rms, 2 bths, yard $ 800
One story villa, 4 rooms, 2bth. Large garden $ 1,500
e Office building 3 story villa excellent
location off Hadda and 60M. Streets $ 3,000
*  Hadda Madina... Fully furnished one story villa,
4 rooms, 2 bths(New), New kitchen, dining room,
garden, good location, near shopping monthly $ 800
e Two story villa, near Iran St. 10 rooms, 6 baths,
2 kitchens, 2L.Halls, 3 cars Parking...Only $ 1,500

additional space for car park B For sale: Hundi Accent, ©f skin, and all types of hair
on 26th September road, model 2001, blue color, good. Massage and
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steamer point - Aden. Final Price: 900,000 Y.R treatment,  please contact
Contact:  733609677- 01-  Contact: 711593459 Sayequa.
620581 Call for an appointment.

Il For herbal / natural facial,

Vehi

les

733459579.
Ml roe sale, Sodium
Hydroxide (Caustic Soda)

Coupon for Free Classified Ads. (All Personal Ads - All Free of Cost)

Details:

268276 or P.O. Box 2579 - Sana’a
For more info. contact: 268661/2/3

Please cut this coupon and send it to Yemen Times fax:

R e e e — —

Send your Free Ads by Fax: 268276 or by P.0O.Box: 2579 Sana'a

beautification

Contact: 733 738 787
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Electricity problems 177, Emergency Police 199,
Fire Brigade 191, Water Problems 171, Telephone
enquires 118, Accident (Traffic) 194, Foreign
Affairs, 202544/7, Interior Affairs 252701/7,
Immigration 250761/3, Inter-City Bus Co. 262111/3,
Ministry of Communication 325110/1/2/3, Radio
Station 282061, Tourism 254032, TV Station
332001/2, Red Crescent 203131/3, Tel-Yemen
7522202, Y.net 7522227

Continental Airlin 278668/283082
Egypt Air 273452/275061
Gulf Air 440922
Lufthansa 213400/219252

Qatar Air ways Fax: 506038, Tel.506030/5

A
=¥ Yemen Gulf Bank  7Te/.967-1-260823 Fax:260824
02 - 270347 fax 02 - 237824

& Shamil Bank of Yemen & Bahrain
Tel. 264775 264702. Fax. 264703,503350
Yemeni Banks:

Central Bank 274314/1
Yemen Commercial Bank Tel: 01277224
Fax: 277291

Tel: 01 407030
Tel: 01 276585/2
Tel: 01 563813

International Bank of Yemen
Arab Bank
CAC Bank

CAR RENTAL

Hertz Rent a Car Sana’a: 01-440309

Aden: 02-245625
Budget Tel: 01 309618 / 506372 Fax: 01240958
Europ Car Tel: 01 270751 Fax: 01 270804

CAR SHOWROOMS
& SPARE PARTS

267791

FORD/HYUNDAI
MERCEDES-BENZ 01 - 330080
NISSAN  Hodeidah: 200150/49, Sana’a: 400269

OPEL/GM 203075
SUZUKI 02 - 346000
TOYOTA 445362/3

COMPUTER EDUCATION
AND INSTITUTES

Aden: 02-237199
Tel:444553

Computer Education
Infinit Education
NIIT Quality_
Computer Education Tel. 445518/7-442073
British Institute for languages & Computer

Tel: 266222-Fax: 514755

Sana’a: 440170, Aden: 248177

:

Hodeidah:234982, Ibb:411988
Mukalla 302641 Seuyn: 402469

FREIGHT
sl FORWARDERS
M&M Logistics & Aviation Services
Tel: 01 531221/531231
Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders 407905

World Link Tel: 01 444550/441935

Yemen German Hospital (open heart sur-
gery)

Tel. 418000, Fax: 418116

Modern German Hospital ~ Tel. 600000/602008
E-mail:felixpene@hotmail.com  Fax. 601889
Al-Jumhury Hospital ~ Tel: 01 274286/87
Hadda Hospital Tel: 01 412981
Al-Thawra Hospital Tel: 01 246967/66

HOTELS

Versailles Hotel Tel: 01 425970/1/2

Sheraton Hotel ~ Tel: 01 237500

Movenpick Hotel Tel: 01 546666 Fax: 01 546000
Taj Sheba Hotel Tel: 01 272372

Relax-Inn Hotel Tel: 01 449871

INSURANCE COMPANIES

Al-Watania Insurance (Y.S.C.)

Sana’a 272713/874  Aden: 243490-242476

Taiz 250029 Hodeidah 219941/4/6

Marib Insurance Sana’a: 206129/8/13
Aden: 255668

Taiz:240927/34
Hodeidah: 219545/8
Yemen Islamic Insurance Co. Sana’a 284193,

5 lines, Taiz: 258881, Aden: 244280
Yemen Insurance company Sana’a: 272806/
272962/43,  Aden: 247617 Taiz: 250345

Mukalla: 304292, Hodeidah: 261839/17

RESTAURANT

Al-shaibani restaurant super delux
Tel: 266375 - 505290 Fax:267619

Rainbow Pre-School 414-026/424-433
Sana’a International School Tel: 01 370191/2

Fax 370193
International Turkish Schools Sana'a ~ 448258/9
Taiz 205593
Al-Majd Yemen School Tel: 206159

Supermarket

AL-JANDUL Supermarket. Tel: 01-422610

Urw. " _mtqa Int. Auth. Trans. Arabic-Engli_“
French -German-Russian-Italian- Spanish-Polish-
Dutch- Iranian-Turkish-Eriterea- Amharic.

Tel: 01-240515

Falcon Holidays ~ Tel: 444118
Al-Nasim Travel ~ Tel: 270750
Universal Business Travel Center Tel: 441158/9/60

UNIVERSITIES

American World University, Rep. by IS academy
Tel. 01 - 417441 Fax: 412039
University of Applied and Social Science

Sana’a: 412442 Fax: 412441

Aden: 234533 / 234960
Queen Arwa University Tel: 44997172
Sana’a University Tel: 250553/4/5
Alandalus University Tel:675567, Fax:675885

To particepate
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Exclusive Agent : - __a

Thabet Son Corporation
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Showroom Telefax 269924-Sana'a- Mujahed St. - Beside Al-Basha Grocery

Yemen’s first and most widely-read
English-language newspaper

Socotra archipelago in the eyes of a Yemeni visitor

By: Amin Dirhem
For the Yemen Times

y trip to Socotra
Island during this
spring was in the
company of Mr.
Peter Hellmuth the
Chairman of the German-Yemen
Friendship Association (GYFA) who
arrived in Yemen with the purpose of
arranging a special visit for some of the
GYFA members to both Socotra and
Kamaran Islands in 2009. The
Germans began preparing for their
prospective trip one year ago.

The Socotra Airport now looks clean
and tidy, luggage pushcarts are avail-
able, other timely services are offered
to passengers upon their arrival and
departure, and workers appear in clean
uniforms. This is a tribute to those who
care about offering top quality servic-
es, mainly managers of Socotra Airport
and Yemenia Airways’ office, based in
Hadibo, the capital of Socotra.

The archipelago is comprised of five
islands: Socotra, Abd Al-Kuri, Samha
and Darsa with a total population
between 50,000 and 60,000 inhabi-
tants.

The area of Diduah Lagoon in
Qalansya is marvelous and eye-catch-
ing, but two tribes in the area are dis-
puting over plots of the land that the
government designated as a protec-
torate. Local counselors and other
executive officials are requested to
immediately resolve the dispute before
it grows into a complicated problem
and has a negative effect on tourism.

The island’s capital Hadiboh still
looks like it did two years ago ay my
last visit, as its roads still lack pave-
ment and light while hotels and restau-
rants in the city are worse now than
they were in the past. The city lacks
planning and there is no government
agency to provide the required facili-
ties for any investor planning to initiate
his or her business.

Entry of qat into the island banned
I was very glad to hear that the island’s
local councils unanimously decided
five months ago to ban gat imports to
the island, but such a decision lacked
an effective implementation mecha-
nism. Yemenia Airways is still trans-
porting the harmful narcotic substance
to the island three times a week.

The Cabinet, the Parliament and the
Shoura Council will need to help rein-
force the gat ban on the island and
impose firm punishment for any indi-
viduals who may violate the ban.

Culture & Awareness

It would be wonderful if all those con-
cerned cared for the delivery of news-
papers, magazines and other publica-
tions to the island in the same way that
they care for the transportation of qat,
which is shipped in an accurate and
well-organized program. The island
still needs to be provided with a local

radio station since the Sana’a-based
radio programs do not transmit well
throughout the island, which obliges
the island’s inhabitants to listen to
Iranian radio stations that come in

clearly.

The Socotran language, culture and
traditions should be conserved via the
establishment of a radio station and
including these elements in school cur-

riculum. The island
is in need of a well-

equipped  cultural
center to contain
some of the artistic,
sporting and enter-
tainment events that
will also help citi-
zens avoid chewing
qat.

Tourism

The relevant authori-
ties should open an
institute on the island
for teaching English,
German and Italian
languages, plus other
centers for training
locals on how to pro-
vide high quality
tourism services.

Socotran culture needs to be preserved, says the

author.

Zubayen Trading & Industry Company  4&beial(g 3ylateill iy 45 s

Sana’a (441575/571) Fax: 441579, E-mail: zubayen1@y.net.ye.
Aden (205060/1/2) Fax: 205063, E-mail: zubayenA @y.net.ye
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Hadiboh Greenhouse

Ahmad Yahya Ali of the Socotra
Maintenance Fund suggested estab-
lishing a greenhouse for all the avail-
able saplings and plants on the island,
particularly the ones close to extinc-
tion. As of now, small plants and grass
are hardly seen on the island anymore
because they are frequently eaten by
sheep and goats.

Adeeb Abdullah Hadeeb, a Hadiboh
local, got the idea from Ali and began
establishing the greenhouse. He
recruited one of his children to gather
saplings for up to 120 kinds of plants
and started his job that is cultivating
and growing plants.

Currently Hadeeb’s son Ahmad and
daughter Fatima are growing rare
plants on the island. They distribute
saplings of rare plants to those who
want to grow them in the island for
free, but nobody is allowed to take
them to outside the island.

Socotra as an independent gover-
norate

I suggest that Socotra should be made
an independent governorate apart from
Hadhramout. Its total area is 3,600
square kilometers, which means that it
is roughly four times larger than the
Kingdom of Bahrain. When Socotra
becomes an independent governorate
with an autonomous budget and man-
agement, it will flourish very rapidly
while preserving its natural elements
and amazing environment.

Raising bees in the island

On the island, there are French volun-
teers who give guidelines to locals and
instruct them on how to raise bees.
There is plan for registering a trade-
mark to carry name of the island’s
honey that will be marketed at the
international level.

Connecting People

Computer
Filters
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@ Petrochemical plants, refineries.
@ Heavy, light industrial plants.
@ Power and desalination plants.
@ Fuel and water storage tanks.
@ Oil fields ancillary installations.

CONSOLIDATED CONTRACTORS
INTERNATIONAL COMPANY - SAL

CONSTRUCTION OF MECHANICAL
AND HEAVY CIVIL PROJECTS

e Offshore structures and underwater works.

@ Pipelines construction and maintenance.

@ Prefabricated accommodation & office facilities.
@ Sewage treatment plants & collection networks.
e Airports, roads, highways, bridges & fly-overs.

Tel: (967-1) 441638
Fax: (967-1) 441630
E-Mail: cccyemen@y .net.ye

@ Air purification for industry @ High quality buildings & sports
e Marine docks, harbours, deep sea e Water treatment plants, reservoirs & distribution
berths & refinery terminals. systems.
Sanaa Aden

Tel: (967-2) 377328
Fax: (967-2) 377716
E-Mail: cccaden@y.net.ye
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